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Unleashing Pakistan’s
Promise in Everything
We Touch

Fauji Foods’ cover represents our reason for being. We
are driven by the opportunity to change our world for
the better. Fauji Foods is committed to helping its
employees, customers, farmers, stakeholders to
achieve their potential. Hence our vision statement:
“Unleashing Pakistan's Promise in Everything We
Touch.”

This statement is deeply ingrained in our organizational
DNA. United as a singular front, it propelled the positive
transformation in our journey. Rooted in the heart of
Pakistan, our products signify not only a dairy legacy
but also a revival journey, upholding the highest quality
standards. We embody unity and pride in every local
ingredient, crafting an experience resonating with
the authentic taste of Pakistan.

At Fauji Foods, our story is one of resurrection, marked
by a new resolve. True to our roots and our mission of
reaching the hearts and homes of all Pakistanis, we
move forward with unwavering dedication.
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MISSION

We provide Delicious food
products that Nourish and
provide Moments of joy to

the people of Pakistan.

We are committed to producing
our products in a way that is
Sustainable Commercially &
Environmentally
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EXCELLENCE

We hold ourselves to the highest
standards of competence, always
striving to improve and exceed
expectations.
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CUSTOMER
FOCUS

Our customers are at the heart of
everything we do.
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AGILITY AND
PERSEVERANCE

We embrace ambiguity and never give up,
even in the face of adversity.
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OWNERSHIP AND
ACCOUNTABILITY

We hold ourselves accountable for our
own actions and those of our team.

Annual Report - 2023
Fauji Foods Limited

&

15



Annual Report - 2023
Fauji Foods Limited

&

16

CARING

We care deeply about our employees,
our customers, and our community.
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OUR HERITAGE

For generations, we have been an integral part of Pakistani households, offering high-quality food
products that have become staples in their daily routines.

Situated within the Fauji Group of Companies, Fauji Foods Limited, primarily owned by FFBL, was
established in 2015 following the takeover of Noon Pakistan Limited, a company with a dairy legacy
spanning over 50 years in Pakistan.

Nurpur, originating in 1966, has left a lasting impression on countless generations, with
its unrivaled taste serving as a cornerstone of its enduring legacy. Renowned as the most

loved butter brand in Pakistan, Nurpur has become the most loved household name, symbolizing
quality and taste.
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TRANSFORMATION
STRATEGY

The transformation strategy has been a torch bearer for FFL for the past 3 years, but started to
deliver the requisite results this year. The path this year has been focused on driving sustainable and
profitable growth which is why the company is back on track. The key pillars for this were Fueling
Portfolio Growth, COGS reduction and enhanced capabilities.

Revitalizing the House of Nurpur for every Pakistani’'s breakfast led to an outstanding 85% overall
brand growth. As part of our dynamic turnaround, the repositioning not only skyrocketed awareness
across categories but also injected a fresh wave of excitement, making Nurpur an essential and
vibrant choice for consumers.

FFLs transformation strategy encompassed various key initiatives that drove positive change across
our operations. RTM Optimization and Digitization initiatives were instrumental, leading to notable
improvements. By implementing sales tracking software in over 35,000 outlets, we gained access to
real-time data, enhancing our decision-making processes.

Moreover, a strategic emphasis was placed on B2B accounts, strengthening of longstanding
partnerships with industry giants such as Unilever, McDonald’s and KFC.

To achieve operational excellence, we focused on reducing COGS through packaging efficiencies and
the adoption of energy-efficient solutions in our factories.

Additionally, our growth trajectory was propelled by the integration of planning processes, resulting
in a smarter, more organized, and agile organization. Furthermore, our commitment to hiring
individuals with the right skills for each role contributed significantly to our overall efficiency
improvements.

Our transformation strategy involved the implementation of a range of strategic initiatives, including
enhancements in cash flow management, improvements in planning and forecasting processes,
opportunity sizing, and contextualization, as well as a shift towards fact-based decision-making.
These measures collectively paved the way for a more agile, efficient, and forward-thinking
organization, positioning us for sustained growth and success in the future.

{&y Margin Accretive Growth
&

B2B Sales

68% to 85%| 7X

Route to Market

+12,000

(2022 Vs 2023)

Outlet Expansion
over LY

Portfolio Pivot

(2022 Vs 2023)
Value Added Portfolio

FSD Sales Growth
Since 2020

($))  Sustainability & COGS Initiatives

Procurement
Efficiencies

Energy Efficiencies Operational Efficiencies

Circa 1Bn in savings

Capability Development: People & Processes

0—©
W-@
| _@ Employee Engagement Processes

+35%

Digitization

35,000

Outlets tracked through
sales tracking software

18-month

Sales & Operating
planning horizon

(2021 Vs 2023)
Employee Engagement
Score Increase vs LY
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1. Appointed as Director w.e.f. February 01, 2024

2. Resigned as Director from the Board w.e.f. February 01, 2024
3. Appointed as Director w.e.f. January 18, 2024 in place of Ms. Tania Shahid Aidrus
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Leading by example

Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik

Chairman/Director

A fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England & Wales (ICAEW] and is also an alumnus of the Harvard
Business School [HBS) and INSEAD. Qutside work, he is keen on art
and horticulture. His career spans more than three decades in both
the global and Pakistani business arenas. He specializes in
transformation and turnaround along with a keen understanding of
governance.

His expertise extends across diverse industries including chemicals,
petrochemicals, consumer goods, life sciences, fertilizer, E&P, and
cement.

Earlier, he served with the British giant then ICI Plc UK Ltd for 28
years in various roles including in Pakistan, the UK, the Americas &
Europe. His last role with them was CEO of ICl Pakistan Ltd from
2005 to 2012.

He participates actively in social and philanthropic activities through
|-Care Foundation, as a Trustee, where he contributes to improving
the quality of life of the underprivileged by enhancing the level of
philanthropic support.

He is a recipient of Sitara-e-Imtiaz given by the President of the
Islamic Republic of Pakistan for his contribution towards the
economy, public service, and social welfare in Pakistan and the British
Asian Trust Award by Prince Charles [Now HM King Charles Ill).

He is currently serving as a Non-Executive Director on the Boards of
following entities:

Public Listed Companies

* Mari Petroleum Company Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Fertilizer Company Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Cement Company Ltd - Director & Chairman
¢ Askari Bank Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Foods Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Pakistan Oxygen Ltd - Director & Chairman
Non-Listed Companies & Institutions

* Fauji Fresh n Freeze Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Akbar Portia Marine Terminals Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Trans Terminal Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Oil Terminal & Distribution Company Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Infraavest Foods Ltd - Director & Chairman
* FFBL Power Company Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Foundation Power Company Daharki Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Kabirwala Power Company Ltd - Director & Chairman
¢ Daharki Power Holding Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Pakistan Maroc Phosphore SA - Director

* FonGrow [Pvt] Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Fauji Meat Ltd - Director & Chairman
» Foundation Solar Energy [Pvt) Ltd - Director & Chairman
* Pakistan Mobile Communications Ltd - Director

* Foundation University - President

Earlier, he served on various boards of prominent organizations:

* Member of the Board of Governors, Lahore University of
Management Sciences

# Director, Pakistan Business Council

* President, Overseas Chamber of Commerce & Industry

* Director, State Bank of Pakistan

« Director, Standard Chartered Bank [Pak) Ltd

* Director, Engro Corporation Ltd

* Chairman, Pakistan Petroleum Ltd

 Director, Engro Polymer and Chemicals Ltd

# Director, TPL Insurance Ltd

* Director, Rafhan Maize Ltd

Lieutenant Genrl
Dr. Muhammad Zahid Latif
Mirza (Retd)

Director

General Dr. Zahid is a graduate of National Defense University
Islamabad, Command & Staff College Quetta and Peoples Liberation
Army Command College, China. An alumni of Near East South Asia
Centre for Strategic Studies, Washington DC & Cranfield University,
UK. Retired from Pakistan Army in 2018.

A Scholar at Heart with four Master Degrees (1) Political Science (2]
History (3] Defense & Strategic Studies (4) War Studies. Also holds
MPhil Degree in [Peace & Conflict Studies) with distinction and is
winner Chancellor's Gold Medal. Has done his Doctorate in
Diplomacy from Peking University in 2019.

Has vast experience encompassing military diplomacy, handling of
peace and conflict issues and tribal conflict resolution. Has lectured
in USA, UK and Chinese academic institutions. Has remained on the
visiting faculty of various universities in Islamabad. He was also a
visiting Professor with Sichuan University and a senior research
fellow with Beijing Foreign Studies University.

Areas of expertise include Politics of South Asia, Afghanistan,
National Security Dynamics and Foreign Policy of Pakistan.
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Mr. Arif ur Rehman
Director

Mr. Arif started his professional career from Fauji Fertilizer Co (FFC]
where he initially worked as Process Engineer in the Ammonia, Urea
and Utilities plants. Later on he worked as Process Engineering
In-charge, Operations Engineer-Ammonia and Ammonia DBN
Commissioning Engineer. In mid-1994, his services were transferred
to FJFC [now FFBL] project team. He worked at FJFC for about 3 years
and was a part of the multidisciplinary team that developed the FJFC
Project from inception to firm order placement. He led the
engineering and improvement of the Ammonia Plant. For that project
he remained in USA for about a year as Ammonia Plant Lead.

In 1996, he joined ICI Pakistan’s PTA Business, which was the first
and is still the only PTA plant in Pakistan with new technology. He
worked as the commissioning leader for the most complex, Oxidation
Plant. Later on he led all the remaining sections of the PTA plant
(Purification and Utilities) and took over as the first local Production
Manager for the PTA Business in 2001. Later on he worked as
Technical Services & DBN Manager and was appointed as Site
Operations Manager in 2005, where he was responsible for
Operations, Maintenance, Inspection and Materials Management.

In 2007 he joined the Fatima Group as Project Director and led the
USD 750 Million Project from ground breaking till its commissioning.
This was a green field project comprising of Ammonia, Urea, NP,
CAN, Nitric Acid, Utilities and related facilities. One of the salient
features of the job was that it was a self-managed EPC Project. Arif
was engaged with dozens of international contractors directly and
completed the project successfully in 2011.

After the commissioning of the project Arif was appointed its Director
Operations. In that role he brought the site to its full potential by a
series of revamps that included the plants and organizational and
systems improvement. As a result the production increased from 0.8
to 1,475 Million tons per year and the bottomline improved from -PKR
2.0 Billion to +10 Billion.

In July 2016 he was appointed Chief Manufacturing Officer, based at
the Head Office in Lahore with responsibility for all aspects of
manufacturing for the Fatima Group’s three Fertilizer Manufacturing
facilities, Fatima Fertilizers, Sadigabad; Pak Arab Fertilizer
Company, Multan and Fatima Fertilizers, Lahore [Ex Dawood
Hercules]. He has responsibility for Operations, Costs, Budgets and
People aspects for all Fertilizers. In addition he is also responsible
for the Supply Chain Function for the entire group where he controls
the budget of about USD 200 Million per year, growth, sustainability
and strategy of the FG; Fertilizer Business.

Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Director

Dr. Nadeem Inayat is the Senior Director Strategy and Merger &
Acquisitions at Fauji Foundation and holds directorship on the Board
of following companies along with Fauji Foods Limited:

Askari Bank Limited

Daharki Power Holdings Limited

Fauji Akbar Portia Marine Terminals Limited
Fauji Cement Company Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited

Fauji Infraavest Foods Limited

Fauji Kabirwala Power Company Limited
Fauji Meat Limited

Fauji Oil Terminal & Distribution Company Limited
Fauji Trans Terminal Limited

Foundation Power Company Daharaki Limited
Foundation Wind Energy-I & Il Limited

Mari Petroleum Company Limited

Pakistan Maroc Phosphore S.A.

FonGrow [Private) Ltd

Dr. Inayat holds a Doctorate in Economics and has over 28 years of
diversified experience in the corporate sector particularly in
corporate governance, policy formulation, project appraisal,
implementation, monitoring & evaluation, restructuring, and
collaboration with donor agencies. He also conducted various
academic courses on Economics, International Trade and Finance at
reputable institutions of higher education in Pakistan. He is also a
member of Pakistan Institute of Development Economics.

Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi
Director

Mr. Kazmi is a fellow chartered accountant with over 35 years of
experience in a diverse range of sectoral and functional strata within
national and regional economies. The key areas of his specialization
are fiscal policy and macroeconomic research, greenfield and
brownfield projects, strategic collaborations, mergers and
acquisitions, outliers in accounting and finance, strategic level audit
and assurance and tax reforms and strategic level advisory. He holds
directorship on the Boards of following companies along with Fauji
Foods Limited:

Askari Bank Limited

Daharki Power Holding Limited

Fauji Akbar Portia Marine Terminals Limited
Fauji Cement Company Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited

Fauji Fresh n Freeze Limited

Fauji Infraavest Foods Limited

Fauji Kabirwala Power Company Limited
Fauji Oil Terminal & Distribution Company Limited
Fauji Trans Terminal Limited

FFC Energy Limited

Foundation Power Company Daharki Limited
Foundation Wind Energy-I & Il Limited

Olive Technical Services Limited

Fauji Meat Limited

FonGrow [Private) Ltd

Mr. Kazmi served KPMG for 35 years; interacted with the leadership
in almost every industry, understanding their vision, their insights,
and business strategies. His rigorous exposure to a diverse range of
sectors and projects, enabled him to conceive and culminate
strategic value additions for his clients. He successfully
implemented a comprehensive service delivery framework that
ensures quality assured service provision to KPMG's clients. As an
auditor and an advisor, Mr Kazmi successfully delivered
best-in-class and integrity driven services and branched into
macroeconomic research with a focus on contributing towards fiscal
and requlatory policies of Pakistan. He has served on a number of
diverse forums / boards in the Private Sector, Public Sector & Civil
Society Organization. As a thinker, he actively spreads his thoughts
and ideas through his articles on national economics, business and
taxation matters and issues, regularly published in reputable dailies.

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Director

Mr. Ali A. Aga has over 38 years of multi industry experience in a wide
range of management positions in General Management, Marketing,
Human Resource Management, Corporate Affairs, Operations and
Supply Chain Management in ICI Pakistan as well as German
company Hoechst and other national companies.

He is currently the Managing partner Middle East - South Asia &
Chief Executive Pakistan for Ward Howell International, a global
Leadership & Management consulting company. Prior to his
involvement with Ward Howell in 2014, he was working with
Pakistan’s leading company ICl where he worked for almost 25 years
in various senior positions. He was appointed the Chief Executive of
ICI Pakistan & Chairman of IC| Pakistan Power Gen Limited during
the transition period of ICl Pakistan's ownership from Akzo Nobel
Netherlands to the YB Group in Pakistan in 2013. He also held the
position of a Director on the Board of ICI Pakistan and worked as Vice
President & Managing Director of ICl's flagship Soda Ash Business
from 2008 to 2014. He has also served as General Manager Human
Resource for the IC| Group in Pakistan from 2004 to 2008 and looked
after HR for the ICl group in Pakistan and Middle East, and was also
responsible for leadership development programs for the Regional &
Industrial Business of ICI plc globally.

Ali Aga has also served as a Director on the Boards of Pakistan PTA
Ltd, Akzo Mobel Pakistan Limited, ICl Power Gen Ltd, Descon
Oxychem Limited and Pakistan Society for Training & Development.
He is a Certified Director and Accredited Trainer on Corporate
Governance by IFC and Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
(PICG), and a visiting Faculty for PICG’s Director’s training program.

He is Director in Ittehad Chemicals Ltd. and has served as
Independent Director on the Boards of Public Sector Companies
STEDEC Technology Commercialization Corporation of Pakistan,
Inland Water Transport Company of Pakistan and Engineering
Development Board. He is also involved in volunteer work in the field
of management development and has served as the Vice Chairman of
the Lahore Chapter of Management Association of Pakistan and a
Council member of the Lahore Chapter of Marketing Association of
Pakistan.

Ali Aga holds an MBA degree from Drexel University U.S.A. and a BSc.
(Engg.) in Chemical Engineering from University of the Punjab. He
has attended the Advanced Management Program at Harvard
Business School and has been a guest speaker at various local and
international conferences and seminars.

Annual Report - 2023
Fauji Foods Limited

£

27



Annual Report - 2023
Fauji Foods Limited

r

Mr. Javed Kureishi

Director

Mr. Javed is a seasoned, international banker having spent 34 years
with Citibank. He has held a number of senior, leadership roles
across corporate banking, country management, risk and public
sector coverage. He worked for Citibank in 6 different locations
including Pakistan, Egypt, South Africa, Czech Republic, UAE and
Singapore where he spent the last 9 years before returning to
Pakistan in oct 2019. His last assignment was Head of Public Sector
Senior Coverage Group for Asia Pacific covering 14 countries. Javed
has travelled extensively across the Asia Pacific and has a good
working knowledge of the region.

Mr. Javed is presently working for the IFC as an external consultant
responsible for senior client coverage and business origination. He is
also on 3 other company boards including the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Javed has also been a keen cricketer. He captained Pakistan
Under 19 in 1978-79 on its tour of Sri Lanka and India. He also played
first class Cricket for PIA, and Sindh and represented Sussex under
25 and combined English Universities.

He has a BA Hons from Sussex University UK and is married with 2
children.

Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti
Director

Mr. Basharat Ahmad has 45 years diversified business experience,
with the government and Country’s foremost Multinational
Conglomerates & local Industry - Hoechst Pharmaceutical, Unilever
Pakistan & Bunny Foods, engaged int manufacturing and marketing
world-class Fast-Moving Consumer Products including Qils & Fats,
Personal & Home Cleaning Products, Beverages, Ice cream & Frozen
desserts, Bakery products etc.

His practical experience includes Supply Chain Management, Sales
& Sales Operations, Trade Marketing, Customer Relations, Factory
operations, Industrial Relations, Corporate Regulatory Affairs,
Negotiations, Corporate  Social  Responsibility, — Corporate
Communication, Interface with the Federal and Provincial
Governments on Tariff Rationalization, Rules & regulations and
System & procedures. He is an International Trainer and Facilitator
of Total Quality Management.

He authored a book on “Successful Retailing”.

Mr. Basharat Ahmad remained Vice Chairman & Director, Pakistan
Dairy Association, Director, Pakistan Halal Product Development
Board, Executive Committee Member, Duke of Edinburg Award
Pakistan, Member Pakistan Soap Manufacturers Association, and
Member Pakistan Tea Association.

In addition, he has 18 years teaching and training exposure which
includes, MBA, MS & MPhil students as well as Middle and Senior
Management level.

Presently he is Chief Executive Officer, Progressive Associates,
Independent Director Fauji Foods Limited and Corporate Director,
Bin Mehtab Consultants.

4

Ms. Noshe Akhtar
Director

Ms. Nosheen Akhtar is a seasoned Human Resource Professional
with diversified experience of 16 years in an extensive HR
environment within the leading Airlines, FMCG, and the Education
Sector. She joined Fauji Foundation in 2019 and currently serves as
the General Manager HR, spearheading HR initiatives related to
Organizational Design / Development, and Talent Management. She
boasts a proven track record of transforming HR functions, with core
strengths including, but not limited to, HR Strategy and policy
making, designing and implementing Talent Management Programs
aligned with business objectives, and facilitating Change
Management processes.

Her accomplishments at different organizations testify to her
acumen, expertise, and leadership. Prior to joining Fauji Foundation,
she held the position of Group Head HR at Gourmet group and served
as the Head of Human Resources in Airblue & Airsial. She holds a
post-graduation degree in Economics and Finance. Furthermore, she
possesses postgraduate diplomas/certifications in HR and is a
certified HR Professional. She has attended various training
programs from renowned institutes, including the Leadership
Development Program certification from Ivwy League Brown
University, USA.

MNosheen's recent achievements, such as the HR Transformation at
Fauji Foundation and the in-house development of a comprehensive
Performance Management system, underscore her ability to drive
positive change.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dairy is deeply rooted in Pakistani
culture, however the industry’s growth
remained slow due to multiple
challenges that affected our country. The
economy in 2023 remained sluggish and
was characterized by escalating inflation,
geopolitical tensions and financial
stability concerns. External financing
conditions tightened, leading to a notable
decline in Foreign Exchange reserves.
Record-high  inflation and  fiscal
pressures exacerbated risks to the
country’s debt sustainability.

Despite these socioeconomic factors, |
am pleased to report that Fauji Foods
recorded its first year of profit. The board
governed strategy was instrumental in
achieving growth and should continue to
deliver in future. The Board's careful
oversight helped in achieving optimal
resource utilization, heightened
transparency, improved disclosures and
better governance across all processes.
The Board has also approved the
Company vision and strategy, which
should see Fauji Foods become a leading
FMCG in Pakistan. The proposed
acquisition of Fauji Cereal and Pasta is in
line with the strategy to deliver Margin
Accretive Growth, own the breakfast table
and extend its portfolio to multiple
culinary occasions.

Central to our operations is a steadfast
dedication to principles of good
governance. We prioritize accountability,
transparency, and ethical conduct in all
facets of our endeavors. To ensure an
objective evaluation of our governance
practices and Board operations, we
engaged the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance [PICG). Their
assessment confirmed the efficacy of our
Board and our commitment to sound
governance practices. We have acted
upon their previous recommendations to
continuously strengthen our Company's
governance framework.

The focus this year has been on
sustainable developments. This
strategic focus underscores our
commitment to implementing practices
and projects that balance economic
growth, environmental stewardship and
social responsibility. Our Solar Power
Plant boasts a 1 MW capacity, producing
an annual output of 1,239,988 kWh units
of electricity, effectively curbing 850,000
kilograms of CO2 emissions.
Additionally, we have achieved a
significant milestone by transitioning
from coal to biomass, resulting in
substantial reductions in both carbon
and sulfur emissions. This shift away
from coal not only lowers operational
expenses but also contributes to a more
environmentally friendly profile. As a
result, annual carbon emissions have
been reduced by 12 million kilograms,
and 5,233 tons of coal imports have been
eliminated. Furthermore, the initiation of
the GRIDD program aims to revolutionize
farmer economics and enhance
productivity.

As Chairman, | feel privileged to be part
of this journey of corporate success as
we continue to push the performance
standards, seize the opportunities
coming our way and deliver sustainable

growth. ' ’

In-ut___
Wagar Ahmed Malik

Chairman
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CEO’S MESSAGE

As we conclude a challenging vyet
transformative year, | feel delighted to
present Fauji Foods' financial results far the
year 2023, to the Board of Directors.

FFL delivered Rs 605 mn PAT in FY 2023
(+128% over LY). The company has now been
in the green for ten months. The three
strategic pillars of a) Margin Accretive
Growth b) COGS reduction and c) Capability
Development helped deliver a Revenue of
Rs 19.8 bn (+60%), GP of Rs 2.98 bn (+207%),
EBIDTA of Rs 1.09 bn (443%). The PAT
included deferred tax income of Rs 596 mn.

Nurpur continued to drive volume growth.
The successful marketing campaign and
Route to Market have ensured that Nurpur
remains the fastest growing UHT milk in
Pakistan for second successive year. The
strategic pivot to margin accretive portfolio
continues to deliver as the entire value
portfolio grew significantly in volume and
value.

The commercial sustainability is reflected
through improved structure of the P&L as
Gross Margins increased from 7.8% to 15.1%
in 2023. This was achieved through focus on
cost efficiencies backed by twin
sustainability projects of 1 MW solar and
biomass. These projects along with
optimized sourcing  and improved
efficiencies across the entire value chain
helped counter the high inflation in 2023. All
of the above was underpinned through a
cultural shift and a strong talent backbone,
a fact reflected in Employee Engagement
score that not only is ahead of the industry
benchmark but has nearly tripled in three
years.

Additionally, the focus this year has also
been on Sustainable Dairy Development,
hence FFL initiated the ambitious GRIDD
program with the goal of transforming
farmer  economics and  enhancing
productivity.  Collaborating  with  key
partners, including Fauji Foundation, the
Department of Livestock Punjab, other

group companies and State Institutions.

With the GRIDD program, FFL provided
farmers with timely and accurate inputs
such as fertilizers, vaccinations, feed and
support for genetic improvement. This
transformative program was designed to
increase vyields, offer improved prices
directly to farmers and eliminate
middlemen.

So far, the project has been implemented in
Punjab reaching prime locations in
Sargodha, TobaTek Singh and Faisalabad.
Within a few months it has positively
impacted milk productivity.

Looking ahead, the investment in brands
and distribution infrastructure should
continue to fuel growth. To further
compliment growth and as part of its
“Margin Accretive Growth strategy” FFL
received the board and shareholders'
authorizations in Q4 2023 to acquire Fauji
Cereals and Fauji Infraavest Foods Limited
(Pasta). The compelling synergies across
the three businesses will broaden the
margin base and improve the P&L
structure. This allows FFL to own the
breakfast table and extend its portfolio
across multiple culinary occasions. The
acquisitions, once completed (post
statutory approvals), are expected to be
EPS accretive.

We are confident that FFL driven by its
vision of "Unleashing Pakistan's promise in
everything we touch" will not only build a
successful business but leave a mark on
the broader national landscape for times to
come.

| want to express my gratitude to the
Honorable Members of the Board and
shareholders for their continued guidance
and support, which has been instrumental

in our present journey. ’ ’

Usman Zaheer Ahmad
Chief Executive Officer
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Sitting From Left To Right

RSHIP TEAM

Brig Naveed Azam Cheema (Retd)

Company Secretary

Standing From Left To Right

Usman Zaheer Ahmad
Faisal Sheikh

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Human Resources Officer

Waseem Haider

Chief Financial Officer

Muhammad Ifzal Akhtar

Factory Manager

Lt. Col M. Babar Rashid (Retd)
Hafiz Sajjad Hussain

Head Admin
Head Milk Collection & Agri Services

Abdul Rehman Butt

Head Supply Chain

Khurram Javaid

Chief Commercial Officer

Rao Muhammad Imran

Head R&D/innovation,_QA & Reg_ulator_y Affairs _
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 57th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of
Fauji Foods Limited will be held on Monday, March 25, 2024 at 11:00 a.m at FFL Head Office,

42 CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase- VIIl, Lahore and also virtually through video-link to
transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To confirm the minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting held on December 28, 2023.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts for the year ended December 31, 2023 and
the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

3. To appoint the External Auditors of the Company for the ensuing period till next AGM and to fix
their remuneration. The present auditors EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants have retired and
the Board has recommended A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants as Auditors of the
Company for the year ending on December 31, 2024.

Other Business

4. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

Closure of Share Transfer Books
Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from March 19, 2024 to March 25, 2024
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of holding the Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

i

5

Lahore Brig Naveed Azam Cheema (Retd)
January 23, 2024 Company Secretary
Notes:

Availability of Audited Financial Statements on Company’s Website:

In terms of the approval of the members of the Company in their Extraordinary General Meeting held
on December 28, 2023 and pursuant to the SECP’s Notification No. SRO 389(1)/2023 dated March 21,
2023 the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023 along
with Directors” and Auditor’s Report, Chairman’s Report, Notice of AGM and other related materials
have been made available on the Company’s website, which can be downloaded and viewed from the
following QR Code and weblink as given hereunder:

Weblink QR Code
E]F .i:g,j..
m;?fi

2 s r
A

53:’
.{, *:‘.;1*‘
https://www.faujifoods.com/pdf/financialResults/Annual-Report-2023.pdf %“ ? ‘:g:i
- t “
R L R

[Q..

Participation in the AGM Proceedings

1. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a
person/representative as proxy to attend and vote in place of member at the meeting. Proxies in
order to be effective must be received at Company’s registered office duly stamped and signed
not later than 48 hours before time of holding the meeting. A member cannot appoint more than
one proxy. Attested copy of shareholder’'s CNIC must be attached with the proxy form.

2. The CDC/sub-account holders are required to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down
by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

(a) For attending the meeting
i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall authenticate

his/her identity by showing his / her original national identity card or original passport at
the time of attending the meeting.

ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney
with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting.

(b) For appointing proxies

I. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall submit the proxy
form as per the above requirement.

il. The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

ii. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
meeting.

v. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be submitted to the Company along with proxy form.

3. Members, having physical shares, are advised to intimate any change in their registered address
and the shareholders who have not yet submitted photocopies of their Computerized National
Identity Cards (CNIC) are requested to send the same at the earliest to the Share Registrar of
the Company i.e., M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town,
Lahore.

4. Shareholders who wish to receive annual reports and notice of the General Meeting through
e-mail are requested to provide, through a letter duly signed by them, their particulars,
i.e. Name, Folio/ CDC A/C No., E-mail Address, Contact Number, CNIC Number (attach
copy). Shareholders are also requested to notify immediately any change in their
e-mail address to the Share Registrar of the Company i.e., M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited,
Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore.

Consent for Video Conference Facility

Members can also avail video conference facility in Karachi and Islamabad. In this regard please fill
the following and submit to registered address of the Company 10 days before holding the general
meeting.
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If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding
residing at geographical location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10
days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange video conference facility in that city
subject to availability of such facility in that city.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days

before the date of general meeting alongwith complete information necessary to enable them to
access such facility.

|/We, of , being a
member of Fauji Foods Limited, holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Register
Folio / CDC Account No hereby opt for video conference facility

at

Signature of member

5. E-Voting
Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143
-145 of Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

¢. Participation in the AGM through video-link
Video-link for participation virtually in the AGM shall be available on Company’s website i.e.,
www.faujifoods.com.

Members are also requested to participate in the Annual General Meeting through the following

means:

1. WhatsApp No. [0321-8318007] (for queries & suggestions])
2. EmailID [secretary@faujifoods.com] (for queries & suggestions])
3. Video Link [Join Through Below Zoom Link]

https://ffbl.zoom.us/j/2315355306?pwd=dUFULOpHNULFSTdINZNZWVJWdVVDUT09

Meeting ID: 231 535 5306
Passcode: 335335

DIRECTORS’
REPORT

For the year ended December 31, 2023
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT FY 2023

Economic Overview

In 2023, the Pakistani economy continued to grapple with inflationary pressures, which were
exacerbated by rising energy costs and continued supply chain disruptions. The annual inflation rate
accelerated to 29.2% in November 2023, following a 26.9% hike in the previous month, primarily
fueled by a sharp rise in housing & utilities costs, which soared to 33% from 20.5% in October. Food
inflation also quickened to 28%, up from 26.8% in the preceding month. The central bank of Pakistan
maintained the key interest rate at 22% for the fourth consecutive time during its policy meeting on
December 12th, 2023. Despite efforts to attract foreign investment and enhance export
competitiveness, the economy continued to show sluggish growth while unemployment remained a
key concern, underscoring the need for comprehensive structural reforms to address these pressing
economic issues.

On a positive note, there are some signs of improvement in the economy. Notable developments
included the successful completion of the staff-level agreement for the first review under the IMF
SBA program, anticipated to unlock financial inflows and strengthen the SBP’s FX reserves. Efforts
to diversify exports and enhance industrial productivity showed some early promise, contributing to
a more balanced trade profile and improved export performance in certain sectors. While these
developments provided a glimmer of hope, sustained efforts and policy implementation will be
crucial to fully address the economic challenges and foster long-term stability and growth.

Business Review

While Fauji Foods Limited (FFL) began its steady turnaround in 2022, | am pleased to report that the
business turned a corner in 2023, recording PAT positive results from March till Dec 2023 with its
highest PAT in Q4 2023. Sales revenue of Fauji Foods Limited (FFL) grew by 60.4% over 2022 with
margin accretive portfolio growing in volume by 43% vs same period last year (SPLY]. While focus on
channel & margin accretive portfolio continued, cost efficiencies contributed ~PKR 1.0 billion in the
gross margin & played a significant role in improving the gross margin from 7.8% in 2022 to 15.1%,
an increase of 7.3% during the year. After a successful and sustainable business turnaround in 2023,
FFL has booked deferred tax income of PKR 596 mn in the financials against the carried forward tax
losses. You will be pleased to note that the profit after tax closed at PKR 605 million vs SPLY Loss
after tax of PKR 2,169 million.

PKR million 2023 2022 Increase/(Decrease) %

Net Revenue 19,809 12,351 60.4%

Gross profit 2,982 969 207.7%

Profit / (Loss) after tax 605 (2,169) 127.9%
Revenue PKR Mn Gross Profit PKR Mn -?;:fli,t&%ﬁ: ) After

w2022 m2023 w2022 m2023

19,809

w2022 m2023

The share generated a return of 118% in 2023, outperforming the benchmark index by 63pps. This
resulted in the company joining the club of USD 100mn market cap.

Operational Efficiency

Cost management initiatives are being implemented across our value chain. An efficiency oriented
lean management approach and mind-set is being strengthened. The Company has already started

reaping benefits in key areas such as production and supply chain. Moreover, this mind-set is
enabling optimization of fixed costs across the Company.

Sustainable Dairy Development

To achieve sustainable sectoral growth, it is of immense importance that there is a lasting
relationship formed with the farmers. Driven by our vision of “Unleashing Pakistan’s Promise in
Everything We Touch”, FFL launched the ambitious GRIDD program to change the farmer
economics and productivity. FFL partnered with Fauji Foundation, Department of Livestock Punjab,
other group companies and State Institutions to deliver timely and right input to farmers such as
Fertilizer, Vaccinations, Feed and Genetics Improvement Support. The program is transformational
in nature. It will improve the yield, provide better prices to the farmers at their doorstep by
eliminating middleman, and once rolled out across Pakistan be a potential driver of GDP growth.

Future Outlook

| am grateful to our valued shareholders for approving the acquisitions of Fauji Cereals and Fauji
Infraavest Foods Limited. These acquisitions are expected to convert Fauji Foods into a consumer
food powerhouse with FFL becoming one of the most diverse food companies in Pakistan. Its
portfolio will enable it to not only own the breakfast occasion through cheese, butter, UHT milk &
cereals but will now entrench its taste credentials across multiple culinary occasions through pasta,
and other wide-ranging products.

Pending the requisite regulatory & legal approvals, these acquisitions are expected to be EPS
accretive transactions for FFL.

Looking ahead, investment in brands and distribution infrastructure coupled with the acquisitions
should continue to fuel growth & profitability. With the legacy debt burden now removed, introduction
of new products & margin focused growth will hasten improvement in FFLs financial performance at
a faster pace. The economic uncertainty, high inflationary environment & a high interest rate are
expected to continue to be a challenge & are unlikely to go away soon, however the strategy of
pivoting to value added portfolio as well as the new businesses will enable FFL to cover the expected
inflation through pricing & margin management. We are confident that FFL, driven by its vision of
“Unleashing Pakistan’s Promise in Everything We Touch” will not only build a successful business
but leave a mark on the broader national & international landscape for times to come.

Principle Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company

Risks faced by the Company are not significantly different from those posed to other companies
working in the dairy sector. Risks are reviewed by the management through a robust business and
risk management process. Appropriate strategies and contingency plans are regularly reviewed to
minimize the potential impact associated with these risks. There are no significant risks and
uncertainties posed to the business and operations of the Company, except as disclosed in the
Contingencies and Commitment notes to the financial statements.

Transaction with Related Parties

The Company carries out transactions with related parties on an arms’ length basis and the
amounts, due from and to, related parties as shown under respective heads. Except as disclosed in
financial statements, no other transactions were executed with related parties.
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Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework: 7. Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (CDC) 78,879 0.0031
o The_financial statements, prepared by the management of _the Co_mpany, present fairly its state of 8| Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti 1 0.0000
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity. ——
* Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained. ?.| Mr. Javed Kureishi 1 0.0000
e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial Executives: - -
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment except for V. Public Sector Companies & Corporations: ) _
those as disclosed in the financial statements.
« International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in VI,  Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies,
preparation of the financial statements. - Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds: 3,532,353 0.1402
* Tn:]sns;fj:;nwﬁghl :Lenlj[?::;jsnit:;fofe?:nrﬁ tl;]kcilr?gslar;:end NSSIBEEN.CUSCINELIMPICMENEA A0d VI Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company:
* There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a ‘going concern’. 1.| Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (CDC) 1,205,576,237 47.8410
e There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are 2.| FFBL Power Company Limited (CDC) 400,000,000 15.8732
outstanding as on December 31, 2023 except for those disclosed in the financial statements. .
¢ The Board has approved the remuneration policy of non-executive directors including independent directors. 3. FFC Energy Limited (CDC] 469,000,000 18.4527
* The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is  Detail of trade in the shares of the Company carried-out by the Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company
included in this annual report. Secretary and their spouse and minor children during the year ended December 31, 2023 is as
follows:
Shares held by: No. of Shares held | Percentage
] ] ] ) Name Purchased Sold
. Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties:
1.| Committee of Admin. Fauiji Foundation (CDC) 67,371,916 2.6735 1. Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik (Director]
2.| Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (CDC) 1,205,576,237  47.8410 * Purchased Ordinary Shares through CDC 500 -
3. FFBL Power Company Limited (CDC) 400,000,000 15.8732 2. Mr. Usman Zaheer Ahmad, (Chief Executive Officer)
I Mutual Eunds: 3. Mr. Waseem Haider, (Chief Financial Officer)
1. CDC - Trustee ABL Pension Fund - Equity Sub Fund (CDC) 20,000 0.0008 * '_3” rCha_sed & Sold Ordinary Shares through CDC 20,000 20,000
2./ CDC - Trustee AKD Aggressive Income Fund (CDC) 2,000,000 0.0794 4. Brig Hamid Mahmood Dar [Retd), ICompany Secretary)
3. CDC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund (CDC) 75 000 0.0030 ¢ Purchased & Sold Ordinary Shares through CDC 200,000 200,000
4| CDC - Trustee JS Momentum Factor Exchange Traded Fund (CDC) 64,771 0.0026 Substantial Shareholders (Allotment of Shares Other than Right):
5. CDC - Trustee Lakson Equity Fund (CDC) 1,750,207 0.0695 9., Fauji Fertilizer Bin Gasim Limited
6. CDC - Trustee Lakson Islamic Tactical Fund (CDC) 138,854 0.0055 * Allotment of Shares Other than Right [through CDC] 70,874,980 :
7. CDC - Trustee Lakson Tactical Fund (CDC) 165,495 0.0066 0. FRBL Eowsrtampany Limiice
m Directors, CEO and their Spouse and Minor Children: * Allotment of Shares Other than Right (through CDC) 400,000,000 -
1.| Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik (CDC) 500 0.0000 7. FFC Energy Limited (COC]
. ¢ Allotment of Shares Other than Right (through CDC) 465,000,000 S
82 2. Mr.Usman Zaheer Ahmad (CDC) 200,000 0.0079 9 9 82
£» 3. Mr Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman 7 0.0000 £n
£ 4. Mr. Arif ur Rehman 70,001 0.0028 &2
EZ 5| Dr. Nadeem Inayat 31 0.0000 N
L3 6.| Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi 1 0.0000 L3
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Board of Directors / Committees meetings during the year 2023

Seven meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik - Appointed on January 26, 2023 7
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Mr. Arif ur Rehman - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Dr. Nadeem Inayat - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 6
Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Mr. Javed Kureishi - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Mr. Imran Husain - Resigned w.e.f January 25, 2023 0
Ms. Tania Shahid Aidrus - Resigned w.e.f October 23, 2023 4

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Mr. Javed Kureishi
Dr. Nadeem Inayat
Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti 5

Four meetings of the HR&R Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

a1 N Ol

Name of Directors

No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Arif ur Rehman

Ms. Tania Shahid Aidrus
Dr. Nadeem Inayat

o W &~ o

Three meetings of the Operation and Business Committee were held. Attendance by each director
was as follow:

Name of Directors

No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti
Mr. Imran Husain

O = M W oWw

Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Auditors

The Audit Committee reviewed consent of two audit firms to provide independent external audit
services to the Company. The comparative rates statement was presented to the Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee has recommended the appointment of A.F. Ferguson & Co.
Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company for the ensuing year. The Board has
endorsed the recommendation.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) regulations 2019,
relevant for the year ended December 31, 2023 have been duly complied with. A statement to this
effect is annexed with the report.

FFL follows a policy framework conducive to more environmentally friendly practices and proper
waste management practices have been adopted for solid and liquid waste, air emission, soil
pollution and noise.

Company’s objective towards corporate social responsibility is to prioritize social good alongside the
traditional corporate goal of generating profits.

Directors are under fiduciary responsibility to operate business under a system of governance and
controls, which reinforces stakeholders trust and confidence in the Company.

The remuneration to the Non-executive Directors (including independent Directors) is paid according
to the remuneration policy approved by the Board.

Dividends

The Board has not recommended any dividend during the year.

Annual General Meeting

The 57th Annual General Meeting will be held on March 25, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. at Lahore to approve
annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Acknowledgement

The Board is thankful to the valuable shareholders and financial institutions for their trust and
continued support to the Company. The Board would also like to place on record its appreciation to
all employees of the Company for their dedication, diligence and hardwork.

For and on behalf of the Board

WaN——
Wagqar Ahmed Malik Usman Zaheer Ahmad
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Dated: January 23, 2024
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STATE M E NT OF COM PLIAN CE 9. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have

been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act

with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and these Regulations.
-~ i 10. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
Name of Company: Fauji Foods Limited elected by the Board for this purpose.The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act
December 31, 2023 and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
the Board.
The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner: 11.The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations which has been approved by BOD.
1. The total number of directors are 09 as per the following: 12. The following Directors have completed their Director’s Training Program:
a. Male: 0? Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik (Director)
D Famate: MErier o Hote Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman (Director)
2. The composition of Board is as follows: Mr. Arif ur Rehman (Director)
Category Names Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Director)
Independent Directors Mr. Javed Kureishi Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Director])
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Director)
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga : : :
Female Director Casual vacancy occurred on 23 Oct 2023 Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi (Director]
Mr. Javed Kureishi (Director)

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik (Chairman)
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Mr. Arif ur Rehman

13. CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

Dr. Nadeem Inayat 14.The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chief Executive Officer Mr. Usman Zaheer Ahmad Mr. Javed Kureishi (Chairman]
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed Piichiadesm ndyar {igmbers
companies, including this Company. Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi (Member)
4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Member)
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures. HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
5. A casual vacancy occurring on 25 January 2023 was filled by the Directors on 26 January, 2023 Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Chairman]
when Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik was appointed as Director in place of Mr. Imran Husain. Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Member)
6. Board of Directors elected Mr. Wagar Ahmed Malik as Chairman of the Board in place of Mr. Arif ur Rehman (Member)

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman on 26 January 2023.

7. A casual vacancy occurred on 23 October, 2023 when Ms. Tania Shahid Aidrus resigned from the OFERATION ANU-BUSINESS COMMITIEE
Board of Directors w.e.f. 23 October, 2023. Subsequent to reporting date on January 18, 2024, Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman (Chairman)

RE the Company has appointed Ms. Nosheen Akhtar as female director within the time limit as . . ﬁE
S E prescribed by Section 155 of the Companies Act, 2017. MiAlLSSEar HoSsaln Ads _ (Member] RE
E% 8. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant M. Basharatabmag. Bhaty [Member) E-En
EE pol_ic?es orthe Cpmpapy. The Board liss ensdred 5 co_mplet_e rgcord of particulars of significant 15. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, Human Resource Committee and Operation and EE
EZ policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company. Business Committee have been formed, documented and advised to the Committees for &

Compliance.

£
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16. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

I T T

a) Audit Committee: 5 Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 4 Quarterly
c) Operation and Business Committee: 3 Quarterly

17.The Board has set up an effective internal audit function staffed with persons who are suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are well conversant with the policies and
procedures of the Company.

18. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit
are not a close relative (spouse, parents, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of
the company.

19. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in

this regard.
20. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 have been complied
with except for:
* The Company has not formed Risk Management Committee. However, the Audit Committee is
performing this role.

* The Company has not formed Nomination Committee. However, the Board is performing this
For the year ended December 31, 2023

role by itself.

WaN——
Wagqar Ahmed Malik Usman Zaheer Ahmad
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Dated: January 23, 2024
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Production
Liquid Production - litres 58,527,307 59,041,145
Non - Liquid Products - Kgs 3,454,028 2,791,413

Financial Performance - Profitability

Gross profit margin % 15.06 7.84
EBITDA margin to sales % 5.51 (2.58)
Pre tax margin % 1.38 (16.27)
Net profit margin % 3.05 (17.56)
Return on equity % 4.31 (53.58)
Return on capital employed % 4,29 (22.55)

Operating Performance / Liquidity

57,077,538
2,830,496

10.75
(0.23)
(17.89]
(14.59]
(21.79)
(12.89)

...Annual

2020

61,144,281
1,940,207

60,873,948
1,651,307

90,295,898
1,778,587

0.84 (11.82) (3.84)
(5.81) (28.52) (24.58)
(41.28) (74.03) (43.30)
(41.48) (100.77) (37.25)
111.40 244 .43 (79.88)
(127.81) 908.41 (42.47)

Total assets turnover Times 1.2 0.9
Fixed assets turnover Times 2.2 1.5
Trade Debtor Rs. (000 497,680 557,499
Debtors turnover Times 38 22
Debtors turnover Days 10 17
Inventory Rs. (000 2,131,406 1,239,692
Inventory turnover Times 10 12
Inventory turnover Days 37 3
Purchases Rs. (000) 14,876,967 9,889,644
Accounts Payables Rs. (000) 821,441 909,850
Creditors turnover Times 17 12
Creditors turnover Days 21 30
Operating cycle Days 25 17
Return on assets % 3.73 [15.43)
Current ratio 3.40 1.33
Quick / Acid test ratio 2.26 1.01

Capital Market / Capital Structure Analysis

0.6

1.0
566,068
19

19
707,587
12

30
6,577,469
737,489
"

33

17

(8.85)
1.27
1.07

0.6 0.5 0.6

1.0 0.7 1.0
350,850 181,171 124,573
28 38 60

13 10 6
543,983 1,443,223 1,380,401
7 5 7

50 80 55
5,866,287 5,053,129 6,437,178
443,910 777,093 898,415
10 6 10

38 61 38

25 29 23
(26.06) (47.63] (21.02)
0.44 0.31 0.58
0.37 0.18 0.36

Market value per share

- Year end Rs. 11.14 47
Breakup value - (Net assets / share) Rs. 5.58 2.56
Earning per share [pre tax) Rs. 0.12 (1.27)
Earning per share [after tax] Rs. 0.26 (1.37)
Earnings growth % 118.97% [73.07)%
Price earning ratio 42.90 (3.44)
Market price to breakup value 2.00 1.84
Debt : Equity - 1.78
Interest cover 2.89 (0.65)

Statement of Affairs

9.19
2.23
(0.97)
(0.79)
79.85%
(11.62)
4.13
2.25

(3.96)

17.37 14.47 30.28
(4.97) (6.96] 4.05
(3.91) (8.05) (6.27)
(3.92) (10.96] (5.39]
64.18% (103.17)% 41.50%
(4.43) (1.32) (5.62)
(3.50) (2.08) 7.47
(3.64) (3.82) 4.61
(0.65) (1.43) (3.79]

Share capital Rs.[000) 25,199,631 15,840,882
Reserves Rs. [000) [13,590,766) [13,925,332]
Revaluation surplus Rs. (000) 2,446,561 2,131,899
Share holder's fund / Equity Rs.(000) 14,055,427 4,047,449
Long term borrowings Rs. (000) - 5,536,164
Capital employed Rs.[(000) 14,105,782 9,614,409
Deferred tax liabilities/[assets) Rs. (000) - -
Property, plant & equipment Rs. (000) 9,028,156 8,138,696
Long term assets Rs. (000) 9,048,360 8,154,165
Net current assets / Working capital  Rs. [000) 4,794,767 1,460,244
Liquid funds - net Rs. (000) 1,300,840 1,145,482

15,840,882
(14,541,006)
2,225,644
3,525,519
6,117,338
9,718,112

8,521,212
8,529,390
1,188,722
1,873,907

8,032,936 5,284,072 5,284,072
(13,265,668)  [10,271,276)  (4,565,974)
1,243,724 1,309,418 1,424,378
(3.989,009) (3,677,786) 2,142,476
6,304,524 2,963,889 4,480,940
2,392,685 (637,262) 6,709,583
- - (1,571,537]

7,550,093 8,106,036 7,953,144
7,577,052 8,152,036 9,584,783
(5,184,367) (8,789,298) (2,875,200)
888,888 114,134 98,221

ceeeeeeAnnual

2020

Financial Performance

Sales - net Rs.(000) 19,809,036 12,350,702 8,586,396 7,373,162 5,744,872 7,649,287
Gross profit / (Loss) Rs. (000) 2,982,319 968,697 922,734 62,262 (678,827) (293,641)
Operating Profit / [Loss) Rs. (000) 936,507 (815,763) (457,148)  [1,147,313) (2,434,379) (2,555,185)
Profit / [Loss) before tax Rs. (000) 273,251 (2,009,458) (1,536,489]  (3,043,795) (4,253,029) (3,312,388)
Profit / (Loss) after tax Rs. (000) 605,112 (2,168,511) (1,252,942]  (3,058,112] (5,788,937) (2,849,239)
EBITDA Rs. (000) 1,092,387 (318,248) (19,931) (428,346) (1,638,713) (1,878,797)

Summary of Cash Flows

Net cash flow from operating activities Rs. (000) 161,168 (969,895) (801,841) (321,559) (1,960,936) (2,539,892)
Net cash flow from investing activities Rs. (000) (514,536) 20,163 105,945 (67,252) (739,335) [1,456,341)
Net cash flow from financing activities Rs. (000) 2,214,267 220,591 1,622,257 4,659,344 2,215,323 (292,430)
Changes in cash & cash equivalents  Rs. (000) 1,860,899 (729,141) 926,361 4,270,533 (484,949)  (4,288,663)
Cash & cash equivalents - Year end Rs. (000) 1,300,840 (560,059) 169,083 (757,279) (5,027,812) [4,542,863)
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS)

1%

-4%

15%

1-10%

+ + 2021 + +

2018 2019 2020 2022

Year Ended

2023

SALES-NET

25,000 _

20,000 19,809
W
3
S 15000
[+
] 12,351
c
o
= 10,000
= 8,586
£ 7,649 7,373

5,745
wm] I I I I
a1 0 2019 0 2020 0 2021 0 2022 2023
Year Ended
MARKETING & DISTRIBUTION

5% T

20%1

15% 1

10% 4

gL

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Year Ended

OPERATING PROFIT / [LOSS)

r-20%

r-30%

r-40%

r-50%

2018 me 2020 2021 2022

Year Ended

2023

FINANCE COST

T35%

+25%

T 15%

0%

Year Ended

PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE TAX

110%

110%

T20%

130%

+40%

150%

T60%

170%

80%

2018 2019 2020 20 2022
Year Ended

2023

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE
- 20% 720
L 0% 1°
| o {120
4 { 1ol
| e {1600
| e {80
L -100% <1100
! . , : : : 1200% ' + + t t + (12.0)
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Year Ended Year Ended
PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND TOTAL DEBTS
20,000,000 - o -
3,000,000, 2 & g
=] ] =]
2,519,963 15,000,000 2 2 =1
2,500,000] " §
@ 4
8 g 5 3 s
2 2,000,000] &£ 10,000,000 o = rt %
2 3 3 8
s @ o pm I o 23
c 'g = =1 &z
S 1,500,000) @ 2 w 3 it
z & so00000] S g 3 i:
c _g =T e m-n
= = 2
1,000,000, = o
2018 19 20 2021 2022 2023
500,000
, (5,000,000) g ]
) 5 &
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 o S
Year Ended Year Ended
TOTAL ASSETS & TURNOVER APPLICATION OF REVENUE
i iy 70.00% 4
16,000,000 | 16,210,308 60.00% |
14,164, T4d: ' T1.2
14,000,000 | 13,556,178 14,057,228 50.00% |
12,152,806 Lo =
g 12,000,000 11,733,186 T 40.00% |
3 E
£ 10,000,000 | 108 § 30.00%
e 2
= =
£ 20.00%
£ 80000001 los 5
= 2
£ 6,000,000 @ 10.00% |
[4]
104 <
4,000,000 | B 0.00% < .
2 F TP = =
2,000,000 1oz g § g g 8225183
Fe g g iipir
2 F g gt agig
02018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 =om 3 § z %‘ E
z 5 F |
w

Fauji Foods Limited

©
o
(=]
o~
1
™~
1)
o
o
@
= 4
]
3
c
c
<




= SINCE 1946 -

- SINCE 1946 -

- SIRCE 1964 -

CHEDDHR 0
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bLICHTLY UTTER

YOU NEVEH HAD IT BETTER
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NURPUR
AT MILIK

NURPUR UHT milk is produced from freshly collected
high quality full cream milk. It is ultra-high

temperature treated and packed in both Tetra and
Ecolean Packs.
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NURPUR
SALTED BUTTER

SALTED BUTTER is produced from fresh dalry cream
with great taste due to high quality butter churn and

hygienically packed in Al-foil and tub for better
protection and convenlence
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NURPUR
UNSALTED BUTTER
UNSALTED BUTTER is produced from fresh dairy
cream with great taste due to high quality butter
churn. It is hygienically packed for better protection
and convenience.
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Serving Quality Products Since 1970 [P0] gm

nurpur 4

UNSALTED & BUTTER .
YOU NEVER HAD IT BETTER
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NURPUR .
SLIGHTLY SALTED

SBUTTER

Spread NURPUR's Sllghtly Salted Butter on your toast
or dollop on pancakes to relish every bite. The subtle
taste of salt is |dea[ for those who prefer low salt dlet

g'l ™
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NURPUR
ClrREDDAR CRHEES

NURPUR CHEDDAR CHEESE has creamy taste with
rich aroma making it customers’ first choice.
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NURPUR e 3
MOZZARELLA CRIEESIE

MOZZARELLA CHEESE provides outstanding

performance in various applications so customers
enjoy a delicious, authentic experience every time.

L Net Weight
& When Packed J
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NURPUR

SLICE

NURPUR AMERICAN BURGER CHEESE is loved by
many for its mild, rich fla¥or. Its delightful smoothness
enhances the taste of every burger, making it the top
choice for burger enthusiasts seeking perfection in
every bite.

ERICAN




NURPUR
CREAM

NURPUR CREAM is a smooth and delicious dairy
cream, produced from fresh high quality milk,
ultra-high temperature treated and packed in Tetra
packaging.
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NURPUR
FLAYOURED MILK

NURPUR FLAVOURED MILK is a sweetened dairy
product made with fresh milk. The process involves
ultra-high temperature treatment to protect the
product.
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DOSTEA
TEA WHITENER

DOSTEA TEA WHITENER provides a rich and mouthful
cup of tea. It is pasteurized, ultra-high temperature
treated and packed in both Tetra Pak and Ecolean
packs.
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FOOD SERVICES ol CORTOMERS
BUSINESS T

cib i)
R | | s
The FFL Food Services Business offers an extensive array of food products tailored to meet the ‘@3@:@
expanding requirement of the food service industry, catering to establishments such as restaurants, <o
hotels, fast-food chains, bakeries, institutional caterers and more. UHA.QWW KFC

Prioritizing quality and customer service, the FFL Food Services Business holds a crucial position in
the food supply chain. It ensures the timely delivery of high-quality food products that not only fulfil

the nutritional requirements of our customers but also enhance their lives with distinct culinary . T JOH N NY
v | v
flavors. “ ] i # J

G A e

LAYERS

BAKESHOP
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BURGERS - FRIES

OUR CERTIFICATIONS & LICENSES
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FS8C Certification 82 6.
CAB #011701
FSSC 22000 Halal Certification ISO 9001 :2015
|
Pakistan Standards Mcdonald's
L
Product Registration SWA, GMP & SQMS YUM! Brands Approval
with PSQCA Approval For KFC & Pizza Hut
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REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

TO THE MEMBERS OF FAUJI FOODS LIMITED

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Fauji Foods Limited (the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2023 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. Areview is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors” statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors

upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

rha i

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner: Omar Chughtai
Place: Lahore

Date: 20 February 2024

UDIN: CR202310120iu8QdMgT9

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Fauji Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Fauji Foods Limited (the Company), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, the statement of profit or loss,
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the

‘financial statements’) and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’'s affairs as at 31 December 2023
and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants” Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the key audit matter:

Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue from contracts with customers

Refer to Note 28 to the financial statements | We performed a range of audit procedures
and the accounting policy in Note 3.13 to the | with respect to revenue from customers
financial statements. For the year ended on | which included, amongst others:

31 December 2023, the Company has recorded
total net revenue from contracts with
customers amounting to Rs. 19,809 million as
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Key audit matter

compared to Rs. 12,351 million during the
previous year, which represents an increase of
approximately 60% as compared to last year.

The revenue recognition is identified as a key
audit matter due to revenue being one of the
key performance indicators of the Company
and raises the risk that revenue could be
misstated to meet targets.

‘ How the matter was addressed in our audit

¢ Obtaining an understanding of the process
relating to recording of revenue from
contract with customers and testing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of relevant key internal
controls.

e Assessing the appropriateness of the
Company’s revenue accounting policies and
compliance of those policies with
accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

¢ Reconciling revenue, on a sample basis, to
the supporting documentation, such as
sales orders, shipping documents and
invoices.

¢ Verifying that revenue transactions at the
end of the financial year and at the
beginning of the new financial year have
been recognized in the proper accounting
period by comparing revenues close to the
reporting date with the respective
contractual terms.

e Assessing the adequacy of related
disclosure made in the financial statements
in accordance with the applicable
accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan.

Latest revaluation was undertaken as of 31 | e Evaluating the information provided by the

March 2023 and consequently, additional Company to the external valuation specialist
revaluation surplus - net of tax amounting to by inspecting the relevant underlying
Rs. 642 million has been recognized in the documentation;

financial statements and the closing balance
of surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net of tax at the year-end
amounts to Rs. 2,447 million.

* Assessing whether the increase in valuation
was correctly accounted for within the
revaluation surplus and statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income;

We have identified revaluation of Property,
Plant and Equipment as key audit matter due
to its financial magnitude and judgement
involved in the assessment of the fair value
of these assets. The judgment relates to the
valuation methodologies used and the
assumptions included in each of those
methodologies.

* Involved our own valuation specialist to
assist in evaluating the methodology used by
the management’s expert in determining the
revalued amount and to assist us in
evaluating the reasonableness of key
estimates and assumptions adopted in the
valuation report by the management’s
expert;

* Reviewed the work performed by our
specialist to evaluate reasonableness of the
methodology, assumptions and data used by
the management’s expert;

* Ensuring that the revaluation surplus has
been recorded in the financial statements as
per applicable accounting and reporting
standards;

* Reviewed the adequacy of disclosure made
in the financial statements in accordance
with the requirements of the applicable
accounting and reporting standards.

Revaluation of certain classes of operating fixed assets

Refer to Note 7 and Note 16 to the financial
statements and the accompanying policy in
Note 3.6 and related significant estimate in
Note 2.6 and significant judgement in Note
2.15 to the financial statements.

The Company has a policy of recording certain
operating fixed assets i.e., freehold land,
buildings on freehold land, plant and
machinery, electric and gas installation and
other work equipment at revalued amount.
Valuations are performed by independent
valuer with sufficient frequency.

Our audit procedures to assess the
revaluation, amongst others, included the
following:

e Obtaining and inspecting the valuation
report prepared by the external valuation
expert engaged by the Company and on
which the management assessment of
valuation of property, plant and equipment
was based;

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’
Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Annual Report - 2023
Fauji Foods Limited

&



Annual Report - 2023
Fauji Foods Limited

&

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a. proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b. the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and
are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c.investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Company’s business; and

d. no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Omer
Chughtai.

TN SE

Chartered Accountants

Place: Lahore

Date: 19 February 2024

UDIN: AR202310120jo1IbwWzV
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023
Note

2023

2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
Capital Reserves

Share premium

Share deposit money

Surplus on revaluation of property,

plant and equipment - net of tax

Revenue Reserve

Accumulated loss

Non-current liabilities

Long term loans - secured
Lease liabilities
Employee retirement benefits

Current liabilities

Current portion of long term liabilities
Short term borrowings - secured
Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued finance cost

Contingencies and commitments

Rupees

Rupees

4 28,000,000,000 28,000,000,000
4 |25,199,631,390| | 15,840,881,590
5 | 1,801,082,303 1,835,148,153
6 | 2,350,000,001 2,708,749,801
7 | 2,446,561,207 2,131,898,795
(17,741,847,841) | ((18,469,229,527)
14,055,427,060  4,047,448,812
8 % 5,482,593,723
9 - 53,570,131
10 50,354,814 30,795,946
50,354,814  5,566,959,800
11 52,635,293 579,001,285
12 - 1,705,540,931
13 | 2,013,980,303 1,755,021,988
965,752 965,752
14 36,945,209 402,289,522
2,104,526,557  4,442,819,478

15

16,210,308,431

14,057,228,090

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note

2023

2022

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Security deposits

Deferred taxation - net

Current assets

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock-in-trade

Trade receivables from contract with customers
Loans and advances - considered good
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Interest accrued

Tax refunds due from Government

Cash and cash equivalents

- Cash and bank balances

- Short term investments

Asset held for sale

16
17

18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26
26

27

Rupees

Rupees

9,028,156,064
9,884,767
10,318,982

8,138,695,696
5,929,326
9,939,947

9,048,359,813

8,154,164,969

265,476,703
2,131,405,881
497,680,233
29,256,194
248,960,989
62,215,078
2,363,458,455

300,840,028
1,000,000,000

185,095,995
1,239,691,594
557,499,467
103,512,837
244,499,183
40,973,562
2,386,308,254

175,482,229
970,000,000

6,899,293,561

262,655,057

5,903,063,121

16,210,308,431

14,057,228,090
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Cost of revenue
Gross profit

Marketing and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Profit / (Loss) from operations

Other income
Other expenses
Finance cost

Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Income tax

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Earning / [Loss) per share - basic and diluted

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

28 19,809,035,759  12,350,702,418
29 (16,826,717,108) (11,382,005,892)
2,982,318,651 968,696,526

30 (1,323,482,146) (1,338,285,748)
31 (722,329,209) (446,174,042)
936,507,296 (815,763,264)

32 238,475,021 199,400,052
33 (577,938,872) (133,328,146)
34 (323,792,596) (1,259,766,520)
273,250,849 (2,009,457,878)

35 331,860,812 (159,052,640)
605,111,661 (2,168,510,518)

36 0.26 (1.37)

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Profit / (Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods [net of tax)

Other comprehensive income / (loss) that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods (net
of tax):

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - net of tax
Remeasurement (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans

Effect of change in tax rate on:
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
605,111,661 (2,168,510,518)
642,176,043 -
(496,804) 1,040,235
641,679,239 1,040,235
(204,746,802) =

1,042,044,098

(2,167,470,283)

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

As at 01 January 2022

Capital Reserve Revenue reserves

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Issued, Surplus on
subscribed revaluation
and paid-up Share Share deposit of property, Accumulated
capital premium money [ ELED loss
equipment - net
of tax
Rupees
15,840,881,590 1,854,498,097 - 2,225,644,056  (16,395,504,505) 3,525,519,238
= - - - (2,168,510,518] | (2,168,510,518)
- - - - 1,040,235 1,040,235

Total comprehensive loss

Share issuance cost
Share deposit money

Surplus transferred to
accumulated losses
Incremental depreciation
relating to surplusfor

on revaluation - net of tax

(19,349,944)

2,708,749,801

(93,745,261)

(2,167,470,283)

(93,745,261)

(2,167,470,283)

(19,349,944)
2,708,749,801

Balance as at 31 December 2022

15,840,881,590

1,835,148,153

2,708,749,801

2,131,898,795

(18,469,229,527)

4,047,448,812

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year

437,429,241

405,111,661

(496,804)

405,111,661

436,932,437

Total comprehensive income

Issue of share capital
(Refer to Note 4.2.1)

Share issuance cost
Share deposit money

Surplus transferred to
accumulated losses

Revaluation surplus realized
through disposal of operating

fixed assets

Incremental depreciation relating

to surplus on revaluation - net of tax

9,358,749,800

(34,065,850)

(708,749,800)

350,000,000

437,429,241

(19,313,014
(103,453,815)

604,614,857

19,313,014

103,453,815

1,042,044,098

8,650,000,000

(34,065,850)
350,000,000

Balance as at 31 December 2023

25,199,631,390

1,801,082,303

2,350,000,001

2,446,561,207

(17,741,847,841)

14,055,427,060

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023 Note 2023 2022
Cash flows from operating activities Rupees Rupees
Profit / [Loss) before taxation 273,250,849 (2,009,457,878)
Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16.1.1 592,936,042 497,112,893
Amortization of intangible assets 17.1.1 1,437,009 402,418
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 32 (6,359,146) (1,393,407)
Provision for obsolete stock 20.1 4,991,031 29,882,174
Doubtful advances written off 223 10,217,400 -
Security deposits written off 33 11,770,486 -
Profit on saving accounts 32 (79,049,367) (37,974,751)
Profit on Term Deposit Receipts [TDRs] 32 (139,972,884) (141,124,932)
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables 21 89,900,000 89,444,266
Provision for Worker's Profit Participation Fund 33 14,679,298 -
Provision for Worker's Welfare Fund 33 5,655,807 -
Provision for sales tax on tea whitener 33 438,493,470 -
Provision for compensated leave absences 10.1 8,964,000 8,499,206
Provision for defined benefit Plan 10.9 21,573,040 18,310,797
Impairment loss on asset held for sale 33 1,759,613 -
Finance cost 34 323,792,596 1,259,766,520
Operating profit / [loss) before working capital changes 1,574,039,242 (286,532,694)
Effect on cash flows due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools (80,380,708) (1,885,364)
Stock-in-trade (896,705,318) (561,986,544)
Trade debts (30,080,764) (80,875,616)
Loans and advances 64,039,243 (27,119,865)
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (17,011,327) (119,240,077)
Sales tax refundable (662,363,862) (535,397,594)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 243,658,362, 759,698,352

(1,378,844,376) (566,806,708)
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 195,194,866 (853,339,402)
Income tax paid (22,552,233) (46,326,243)
Employee benefits paid (11,474,976) (70,229,321)
Net cash generated from / [used in) operating activities 161,167,657 (969,894,966)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (789,857,212) (122,817,080)
Acquisition of intangible assets (5,392,450) -
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 82,932,603 4,853,963
Profit on saving accounts 79,049,367 37,974,751
Profit on Term deposit receipts 118,731,370 100,151,370
Net cash [used in) / generated from investing activities (514,536,322) 20,163,004
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of long term loans (5,988,149,277) (50,457,824)
Short term borrowings - net - (228,974,159)
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities (74,380,569) (63,975,527)
Finance cost paid (689,136,909) (1,416,651,879)
Proceeds received against issuance of shares 8,650,000,000 -
Share deposit money received from Fauji Foundation 350,000,000 2,000,000,000
Share issuance cost (34,065,850) (19,349,944)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 46 2,214,267,395 220,590,667
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,860,898,730 1729,141,295)
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year 37 (560,058,702) 169,082,593
Cash and cash equivalents - at end of the year 37 1,300,840,028 (560,058,702)
The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral
part of these financial statements. pw\
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended 31 December 2023

1
1.1

1.2

N
N

THE COMPANY AND ITS ACTIVITIES
Corporate and general information

Fauji Foods Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 26 September 1966 as a
Public Company under the Companies Act, 2017. The shares of the Company are listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is a subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
(the Parent Company). The Company is principally engaged in processing and sale of toned
milk, milk powder, fruit juices, allied dairy and food products. Following are the business units
of the Company along with their respective locations:

BUSINESS UNIT
Production Plant
Registered Office and Head Office

LOCATION
Bhalwal, District Sargodha
42 CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase-VIll, Lahore

Acquisition of Fauji Infraavest Foods Limited and Merger with Fauji Cereals
The Board of directors of the Company, in its meeting held on 21 November 2023, approved
the following transactions:

a) Acquisition of Fauji Foundation's stake in Fauji Infraavest Foods Limited; and
b) Acquisition of Fauji Foundation's cereal business operating under the name Fauji Cereals.

The Company has also obtained the approval of aforementioned transactions from its
shareholders through Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28 December 2023. The

Company is currently in the process of obtaining regulatory approvals to finalize these
transactions.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the
InternationalAccounting Standards Board (IASB]) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
and

-Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been
followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
for the measurement of certain items of property, plant and equipment as referred to in note
16 which are carried at revalued amounts, while recognition of lease liability and employee
retirement benefits as referred to in note 9 and 10 are carried at present value respectively.

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company’s
functional currency and all financial information presented has been rounded off to the
nearest rupees, except otherwise stated.

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting

standards as applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions
The assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are described below. The
Company based it's assumptions and estimates on the parameters under which these
financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about the
future development may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are
beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they

occur.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment on
a regular basis. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of
the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the

depreciation charge.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional

valuer. Revalued amounts of non-depreciable items are determined by reference to local
market values and that of depreciable items are determined by reference to present
depreciated replacement values.

Valuation of stock in trade

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade, stores and spares on an annual
basis, and as appropriate, inventory is written down to its net realizable value, or a provision
is made for obsolescence if there is any change in the usage pattern and physical form of
related inventory. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Impairment of non financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
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2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not
include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the performance of the assets being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes

Estimation of provisions
As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws,

regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many
years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously
recognised provision is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was
originally recognised as part of cost of an asset.

Taxation
The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the

taxation authorities. Instances where the Company’s views differ from the views taken by the
income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its
view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as

contingent liabilities.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns [i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage

by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates.

The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions [i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast
economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical
credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future.

Compensated absences
Compensated absences is granted to all its permanent employees in accordance with the

rules of the Company. Calculations in respect of unutilized privileged leaves accumulated
require assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in respect of
mortality rate, withdrawal rate, increase in remuneration and the discount rate used to
convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the

underlying assumptions.

Staff retirement gratuity
Defined benefit plan is provided for permanent employees of the Company. The plan is

2.14

2.15

3.1

3.2

typically structured as a separate legal entity managed by trustees. Calculations in this
respect require assumptions to be made of future outcomes, the principal ones being in
respect of mortality rate, withdrawal rate, increase in remuneration and the discount rate
used to convert future cash flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in
the underlying assumptions.

Tax refunds due from Governments

Management has classified the whole of the amount of tax refundable (income and sales tax]
as current asset based on the assessment that either the amount will be refunded in the next
year or related settlement of amounts due to Government within next twelve months from
reporting date.

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuer.
The valuation methodology used by indpendent professional valuers disclosed in 43.2 of these
financial statements.

Material accounting policy information
The material accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. The Company recognizes income
and deferred tax in accordance with the requirements of IAS 12 "Income Taxes".

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year computed in accordance
with tax laws in Pakistan, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of
financial position date and any adjustments to the tax payable in respect of previous years.
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to taxation authorities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised on all taxable
/ deductible temporary differences as of the statement of financial position date.

In making the estimates for current and deferred taxes, the management looks at the income
tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. There are
certain matters where the Company’s view differs with the view taken by the income tax
department and such amounts are shown as contingent liability.

Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company enters into lease arrangements principally in respect of plant and machinery
and space for its operations. The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract
Is, or contains, a lease.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease [i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease
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3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

term. Refer note 9 to these financial statements for disclosure of lease liability.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The Company
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is
a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control that affects its ability
to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate. The Company cannot readily
determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental lending rate
to measure lease liabilities.

Employees’ retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan

Provident fund

The Company is operating an approved provident fund scheme for all its employees since 01
May 1986. Equal monthly contributions are made by the employer and the employee to the
fund in accordance with the fund rules at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

Accumulated compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance
with the rules of the Company. The Company accounts for these benefits in the year in which
the absences are earned. Retired army officers and other employees are entitled to earned
leaves of 30 days and 20 days per annum respectively. The unutilized leaves are accumulated
subject to a maximum of 120 days for ex-servicemen and 20 days for management & 28 days
for non-management employees. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be enchased at the
time the employee leaves Company service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of
above mentioned limits is ignored while determining benefit obligations.

The Company accounts for all accumulating compensated absences when employees render
service that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences. The liability is
determined based on actuarial valuation carried out using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The latest valuation was carried out on 31 December 2023.

Defined benefit plan
The Company operates an funded defined benefit gratuity plan for all permanent employees,
having a service period of more than three years for retired army officers and more than five
years for other employees. The Company recognizes expense in accordance with 1AS 19
“"Employee Benefits".

The Company’'s costs and contributions are determined based on actuarial valuation carried
out at each year end using Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method. All actuarial gains and
losses are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income’ as they occur and are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods. The actuarial valuations involve assumptions about
discount rates, expected rates of return on assets and future salary increases as disclosed in
note 10.17. Due to the long term nature of the plan, such estimates are subject to significant
uncertainty. The latest valuation was carried out on 31 December 2023.

3.4

3.5

3.6

Trade and other payables

The Company's trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. The Company
classify account balances as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (orin
the normal operating cycles of business if longer]. If not, they are classified as non-current
liabilities.

The Company recognizes these liabilities initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on
translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the
respective liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events, it is probable, will result in an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits, to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
Provisions have been reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and
machinery, electric and gas installations, milk churns and other work equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and identified impairment loss. Freehold land is stated
at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by reference to its current market
price less any identified impairment loss. Buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery,
electric and gas installations, milk churns and other work equipment are stated at revalued
amount carried out by independent valuers by reference to current market price less
accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. Cost in relation to property,
plant and equipment comprises acquisition and other directly attributable costs.

Surplus on revaluation has been recognized by restating gross carrying amounts of respective
assets being revalued, proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to
revaluation. The accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation was also adjusted to
equal difference between gross carrying amounts and the carrying amounts of the assets
after taking into account accumulated impairment losses.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment has
been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of revaluation surplus. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss, and
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred to retained earnings. Upon
disposal, revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold has been transferred
to retained earnings. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment are net of applicable deferred tax.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, building and plant &
machinery is charged to statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as to
write-off the depreciable amount of an asset over its remaining estimated useful life after
taking into account the impact of their residual value, if considered significant. The assets’
residual values and useful lives have been reviewed at financial year-end.

Useful lives has been determined by the management based on expected usage of assets,
expected physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar
limits on the use of the assets and other similar factors.
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Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in
which an asset is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in
which the asset is disposed-off.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance have been charged to statement of profit or loss during the year in
which these are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset has been recognized as an income or
expense.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such
assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable
amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective recoverable amount, assets are written
down to their recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment is recognized in statement
of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell
and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted
in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over its estimated useful
life.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. It consists of
all expenditures and advances connected with specific assets incurred and made during
installations and construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and
equipment as and when assets are available for use.

Non-current assets held for sale

The Company has classified certain non-current assets as held for sale as their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. These non-current assets classified as held for sale have been measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to sell are the
incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and
income tax expense. The criteria for held for sale classification has been met as the sale is
highly probable, and the assets are available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Actions required to complete the sale also indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management is
committed to the plan to sell the asset and the sale is expected to be completed within one
year from the date of the classification. These non-current assets held for sale have not been
depreciated once classified as held for sale; and have been presented separately in the
statement of financial position.

Intangible assets

Expenditure incurred on intangible asset has been capitalized and stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets have finite
useful life and are thus amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of three years. Amortization of intangible assets has been commenced from the date an
asset is capitalized.

3.9

3.10

3.1

Stores, spares and loose tools

Usable stores, spares and loose tools of the Company are valued principally at moving
average cost, while items considered obsolete are impaired. Iltems in transit are stated at cost
comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up to the reporting date. The
Company has reviewed the carrying amount of stores, spares and loose tools on a regular
basis and provision has been made for obsolescence, if there is any change in usage pattern
and physical form of related stores.

Stock-in-trade

Stock of raw and packing materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for those in
transit, have been valued by the Company principally at the lower of average cost and net
realizable value. Cost in relation to raw and packing materials has been measured at
moving average cost. Work-in-process and finished goods have been measured by the
Company at weighted average cost and cost comprises direct materials, labour and
appropriate proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Stock in transit have been stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to
the reporting date.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make
the sale.

Financial instruments
All financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company have been initially recognized
when the Company became a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

3.11.1 Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s

contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component,
the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical

expedient are measured at the transaction price as disclosed in 3.13 "Revenue from

contracts with customers”.

3.11.2 Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the
change in the business model.
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The Company's financial assets are measured subsequently at amortized cost if it meets both

of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, short term
loans, security deposits, trade and other receivables and short term investments (i.e. Term
deposit receipts).

Financial assets - Business model assessment
For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial
asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money
and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a
particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.qg. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or
amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this
assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, while the
interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in statement of profit or loss.

The Company's financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long term and short
term borrowings and accrued markup .

3.11.3 Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its

statement of financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not
derecognized.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial Liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when
its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different,
in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value.
on derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

3.11.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts and intends to either settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

3.11.5 Impairment

Financial assets

The Company recognizes expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortized
cost. The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Loss
allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from thegross
carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Non - financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and

deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its
value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating
unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in
statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash generating units
are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in a unit on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is reversed only to that extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the
reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
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3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the
purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand,
balances at banks, short term investments and outstanding balance of short term running
finances.

Revenue recognition

The Company is in the business of manufacture and sale of dairy products under the brand
name of "Nurpur”. These products include ultra high temperature milk, cheese, cream,
skimmed milk powder, butter and other allied products. Revenue is measured based on the
consideration specified in a contract with a customer, net of returns, amounts collected on
behalf of third parties (sales taxes etc.), pricing allowances, other trade discounts, volume
discounts and price promotions to customers. Revenue is recognized when or as performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring control of promised goods to a customer and control is
transferred at point in time. when a customer obtains control of the goods under the contract,
usually when the customer acknowledges the receipt of goods.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a
customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier]). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue
when the Company performs under the contract.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions. On the
basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable
segment. All non-current assets of the Company are located in Pakistan and 100% of the
revenue is derived from sale of dairy and allied products.

3.16 Amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The new and amended standards that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to
adopt these new and amended standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

Standard

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how to classify debt and other
liabilities as current or non-current.
In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1
to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments clarify:
e What is meant by a right to defer settlement
¢ That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
¢ That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its

deferral right

3.17

e That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity
instrument would the terms of a liability not impact its classification.

¢ Only covenants with which an entity is required to comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current.
In addition, an entity has to disclose information in the notes that enables
users of financial statements to understand the risk that non-current
liabilities with covenants could become repayable within twelve months.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 01 January 2024 and must be applied retrospectively. The amendments
are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

IFRS 16 Leases - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments requires a
seller-lessee to subsequently measure lease liabilities arising from a
leaseback in a way that it does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The new requirements do not
prevaseller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss relating
to the partial or full termination of a lease. The amendments are effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2024. A
seller-lessee applies the amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS
8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to sale

and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application.

The above amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company’s
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by the IASB, which are yet to be
notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan:

Standard Effective date
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International

Financial Reporting Standards 01 January 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01 January 2023

The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards will have no material effect
on the Company's financial statements, in the period of initial application.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES RESULTING FROM AMENDMENTS
IN STANDARDS DURING THE YEAR

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are
consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for following amendments to
accounting standards which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2023 (unless otherwise stated]. The Company has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective:

IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates - The amendments to IAS 8 clarify the
distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. They also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the financial statements.
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IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies - The amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS
Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide guidance and

IFRS g SN : :
examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to accounting policy

Practice disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy

Statement 2  disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to

disclose their ‘significant” accounting policies with a requirement to disclose
their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply

the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy
disclosures. The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s

disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition

or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statement.

4.2.2 These shares have been issued at par [i.e. Rs. 10) to the following allotees:

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
FFBL Power Company Limited - subsidiary of FFBL 400,000,000 -
FFC Energy Limited - an associated undertaking 465,000,000 2
865,000,000 -

4.2.3 These shares have been issued to the Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited [i.e. the Parent

Company) at par [i.e. Rs.10).
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4 Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 4.2.4 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertakings and directors at year end
are as follows:
4.1 Authorized capital 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
(Number of shares) Rupees Rupees Ordinary share capital
Percentage held Number of shares
Shares of Rs.10 each 2,800,000,000 _2,800,000,000 28,000,000,000 28,000,000,000 Fauiji Fertilizer Bin Qasim
Limited - voting ordinary
4.2  Issued, subscribed and paid up ordinary share capital shares 47.84% 71.63% 1,205,576,237 1,134,701,257
2023 2022 2023 2022 FFBL Power Company
(Number of shares) Rupees Limited - voting ordinary B}
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 h 15.87% 0.00% 400,000,000
each fully paid in cash  1,557,228,762 692,228,762 15,572,287,620 6,922,287,620 shares ° °
. FFC Energy Limited
Lidinry.shares i RS 10 - voting ordinary shares 18.45% 0.00% 465,000,000 i
each issued as fully paid
bonus shares 2,639,200 2,639,200 26,392,000 26,392,000 Fauji Foundation
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 - voting ordinary shares 2.67% 4.25% 67,371,916 67,371,916
eachissued.on Directors, Officers, their
conversion of loans 882,020,197 882,020,197 8,820,201,970 8,820,201,970 ' L
spouse and minor children
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 - voting ordinary shares 0.01% 0.01% 349,421 148,923
each issued on conversion
of accrued mark-up 70,874,980 - 708,749,800 - 2,138,297,574  1,202,222,096
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 4.2.5 The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as declared [if any) and to one
issued on conversion of vote per share at general meetings of the Company. The shareholders of the Company do not
convertible preference shares 7,200,000 7,200,000 72,000,000 72,000,000 have any agreements for voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal, and block
2,519,963,139 1,584,088,159 25,199,631,390 15,840,881,590 voting.
5 Share premium
421 Movement during the year is as follows: Note 2023 2022 This reserve can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section 81(2) of

No. of Shares No. of Shares

Balance as at 01 January 1,584,088,159 1,584,088,159

Shares issued against:

- Cash received during the year 4.2.2 865,000,000 =
- Accrued mark-up, transferred from
share deposit money 4.2.3 70,874,980 -

Balance as at 31 December 2,519,963,139 1,584,088,159

the Companies Act, 2017. The movement during the year is as follows:

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
As at 01 January 1,835,148,153 1,854,498,097
Share issuance cost (34,065,850) (19,349,944)
As at 31 December 1,801,082,303 1,835,148,153
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Share deposit money Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Fauji Foundation 2,350,000,001 2,000,000,000

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited - 708,749,801

6.1

2,350,000,001

2,708,749,801

The Company, in its Extraordinary General Meeting held on October 18, 2022, had approved
further issue of shares, with face value of Rs. 11,708 million, by way of other than right issue.
This included an amount of Rs. 2,350 million, received from Fauji Foundation (FF], the
Ultimate Parent of the Company, as share deposit money, in the current and prior years.
During the year, prior to share allotment, a request was received from FF to defer its’ share
allotment, under agreement dated August 29, 2022. Based on the above request, pursuant to
the Board of Directors’ decision dated March 01, 2023, the Company has deferred the
allotment / issuance of Ordinary Shares at par value to FF, till further communication. The
Ordinary Shares with a face value of Rs. 9,358 million have been issued to remaining parties
(as disclosed in Note 4.2).

Note 2023 2022
Rupees

2,131,898,795

1,033,527,325 -
(391,351,282) -
642,176,043

(19,313,014) -

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment - net of tax

Rupees

Revaluation surplus as at 01 January 2,225,644,056

Surplus during the year
Deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus

Net amount transferred to accumulated lossed on account
- disposal of plant and machinery - net of deferred tax

- incremental depreciation charged during the

year - net of deferred tax (103,453,815) (93,745,261)
(122,766,829) (93,745,261)
Impact of change in tax rate on revaluation surplus (204,746,802) -

Revaluation surplus as at 31 December - net of tax 7.1 2,446,561,207 2,131,898,795

This represents surplus [net of applicable deferred tax) arising on revaluation of freehold
land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery (including plant and machinery
appearing under right of use assets), electric and gas installation and other works equipment.
This has been adjusted by incremental depreciation arising out of revaluation of
above-mentioned assets except freehold land. The latest valuation was carried out by an
independent professional valuer, K.G Traders, on 31 March 2023. The surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the shareholders
in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017. For details of related fair value
determination, refer to Note 43.2 of these financial statements.

Long term loans - secured Note 2023 2022
Long term loans - at amortised cost Rupees Rupees
Syndicate Finance Facility 8.3 - 5,988,149,277

Current maturity presented under current liabilities - (505,555,554)
- 5,482,593,723

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.3.1

In accordance with the consent granted by the financiers, the Company has exercised the

pre-payment option, resulting in the complete repayment of this syndicate finance facility
during the year. The funds for repayment were generated through the issuance of shares

other than right issue. This syndicate finance facility was jointly led by Faysal Bank Limited,
National Bank of Pakistan, MCB Bank Limited and Allied Bank Limited and participated by
Askari Bank Limited, Alfalah Bank Limited, Soneri Bank Limited, Dubai Islamic Bank Limited
and JS Bank Limited. The mark up was payable quarterly at the rate of 3 Months KIBOR plus
1.5% per annum.

The syndicate finance facility was secured by way of pari passu charge amounting to PKR
8,089 Million inclusive of 25% margin on fixed assets along with mortgage by constructive

deposit of title deeds of property / land measuring 120 kanals and building thereon situated in

Mauza Purana Bhalwal, Tehsil Bhalwal, District Sargodha in favour of security agent (i.e.

Faysal Bank Limited). The syndicate finance facility was additionally secured through sponsor
support in the form of Stand by letter of credit amounting to PKR 1,000 Million from Askari

Bank Limited and a revolving corporate guarantee. During the year, subsequent to repayment
of this syndicate finance facility, these charges have been vacated in full.

Note 2023 2022
The movement during the year is as follows: Rupees Rupees
As at 01 January 5,988,149,277 6,038,607,101
Addition during the year - -
Repayments during the year 8.3.1 (5,988,149,277) (50,457,824)

As at 31 December

9,988,149,277

These represent repayments to the following financial institutions:

Syndicate finance facility
Allied Bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan
MCB Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited 396,544,141 -
Alfalah Bank Limited 247,840,088 -
Soneri Bank Limited 495,680 176 -
JS Bank Limited 247,840,088 -
Dubai Islamic Bank Limited 272,624,097 -

Salay refinance facility

568,026,750
941,976,909
1,084,158,027
1,733,459,001

5,988,149,277

JS Bank Limited = 50,457,824
Lease liabilities 5,988,149,277 50,457,824
Present value of lease liabilities against:
- plant and machinery 34,918,252 71,998,788
- leasehold buildings 17,717,041 55,017,074
9.1 52,635,293 127,015,862
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (52,635,293) (73,445,731)
- 53,570,131
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9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10

Movement of lease liabilitie

Plant and Leasehold Total
machinery Building
2023 Rupees
Opening balance 71,998,788 55,017,074 127,015,862
Finance cost charge 6,964,874 4,630,023 11,594,897
Payments (44,045,410) (41,930,056) (85,975,466)
Closing balance 34,918,252 17,717,041 52,635,293
Less: current portion shown under
current liabilities (34,918,252) (17,717,041) (52,635,293)
2022
Opening balance 104,442,060 82,005,746 186,447,806
Finance cost charge 11,588,844 11,121,488 22,710,332
Payments (44,032,116) (38,110,160) (82,142,276)
Closing balance 71,998,788 55,017,074 127,015,862
Less: current portion shown under
current liabilities (37,080,536) (36,365,195) (73,445,731)
34,918,252 18,651,879 53,570,131

The Company has entered into lease arrangements with a supplier for filling machines and
with a landlord for building. The rentals under these agreements are repayable in 24 to 60
monthly and quarterly instalments. The lease payments have been discounted at an implicit
interest rate of 8.20% to 13.59% (2022: 8.20% to 13.59% ] per annum. At the end of the
respective lease term, the assets other than building, shall be transferred in the name of the
Company. Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are to be borne by the Company.

The maturity analysis have been disclosed in note 42.7 of these financial statements.

2023 2022
Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss Rupees Rupees
Finance cost on lease liabilities 11,594,897 22,710,332
Depreciation on right of use assets 37,321,115 40,552,151

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs.74.38 (2022: Rs. 63.98) million. The
Company has no non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities (2022: Nil).

Note 2023 2022
Employee retirement benefits Rupees Rupees
Accumulated compensated absences 10.1 27,206,296 22,871,516
Defined benefit plan 10.8 23,148,518 7,924,430
50,354,814 30,795,946

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Note 2023 2022
) Rupees Rupees
Movement in accumulated compensated absences
Balance as at 01 January 22,871,516 23,611,109
Charge to statement of profit or loss 10.2 8,964,000 8,499,200
Benefits paid during the year (4,629,220) (9,238,793)
Balance as at 31 December 27,206,296 22,871,516
Charge to the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 4,961,543 4,677,308
Interest on defined benefit liability 1,361,895 997,065
Remeasurement loss 10.3 2,640,562 2,824,827
10.4 8,964,000 8,499,200

Remeasurement gain / loss
Actuarial gain / losses due to changes in financial
assumptions 94,589 68,166
Actuarial gain / losses due to experience adjustments 2,545,973 2,756,661

2,640,562 2,824,827
Allocation of expense during the year
Cost of sales 3,585,600 3,399,680
Marketing and distribution expense 3,585,600 3,399,680
Administrative expense 1,792,800 1,699,840

8,964,000 8,499,200
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

2023 2022
Discount rate 16.75% 13.25%
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries 15.75% 12.25%

Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005)

SLIC (2001-2005)

As at 31 December 2023, average accumulation of leaves is 8 days per annum (2022: 8 days
per annum), subject to a maximum accumulation of 20 days for management employees, 28
days for non-management employees and 120 days for ex-servicemen (2022: 20 days for
management employees, 28 days for non-management employees and 120 days for
ex-servicemen).

Sensitivity analysis
If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the present value of liability at the

reporting date, had fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the present
value of the liability as at 31 December 2023 would have been as follows:
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10.7

10.8

10.9

Present value of liability at the year end

Due to increase in assumptions

2023 2022
Rupees
Discount rate 100 bps 25,124,558 29,460,158 21,121,202 24,766,270
Salary increase 100 bps 29,460,228 25,124,558 24,766,879 21,121,461

Maturity profile (Undiscounted payments)

The Company expects to contribute to the gratuity fund on the advice of the fund’s actuary. The

contributions are equal to the current service cost with adjustment for any deficit.

Projected payments 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Year 1 4,905,835 5,641,077
Year 2 5,758,727 6,052,415
Year 3 6,518,482 7,429,372
Year 4 8,163,847 8,163,844
Year 5 88,905,373 8,765,196
More than year 5 51,482,340 45,327,185
Note 2023 2022
Defined benefit plan Rupees Rupees
Present value of defined benefit obligation 10.10 79,401,123 57,924,430
Fair value of plan assets 10.11 (56,252,605) (50,000,000)
10.9 23,148,518 7,924,430
Movement in net defined benefit liability
Balance as at 01 January 7,924,430 51,644,390
Current service cost 20,976,588 16,090,145
Interest on net defined benefit liability 596,455 2,220,658
Contribution by employer (6,845,759) (60,990,528)
Charge to other comprehensive income 496,804 (1,040,235)
Balance as at 31 December 23,148,518 7,924,430

10.10 Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

Balance as at 01 January

Current service cost

Interest on defined benefit liability

Return on plan assets excluding interest income
Benefits paid during the year

Charge to other comprehensive income

Balance as at 31 December

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets

Balance as at 01 January

Contribution by employer

Interest income

Benefits paid during the year

Return on plan assets excluding interest income
Balance as at 31 December

Fair value of plan assets

Term deposit receipt - Askari Bank Limited
Bank - saving account - Askari Bank Limited

Charge to the statement of profit or loss

Current service cost
Interest on defined benefit liability - net

Allocation of expense during the year

Cost of sales
Marketing and distribution expense
Administrative expense

Charge to other comprehensive income

- Actuarial losses due to change in financial assumptions
- Actuarial losses / [gain) due to experience adjustments
- Return on plan assets excluding Interest income

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
57,924,430 51,644,390
20,976,588 16,090,145

7,190,245 4,845,658
129,913 (2,625,000)
(7,316,857) (10,990,528)
496,804 (1,040,235)
79,401,123 57,924,430
50,000,000 -
6,845,759 60,990,528
6,593,790 2,625,000
(7,316,857) (10,990,528)
129,913 (2,625,000)
56,252,605 50,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,008
6,252,605 -
56,252,605 50,000,000
20,976,585 16,090,145
596,455 2,220,658
10.14 21,573,040 18,310,803
8,629,216 8,374,321
8,629,216 8,374,321
4,314,608 1,562,161
21,573,040 18,310,803
102,365 131,109
524,352 (3,796,344)
(129,913) 2,625,000
496,804 (1,040,235)

P oo
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2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

10.16 Estimated expense to be charged to statement of profit or loss in next year

Current service cost 24,490,167 18,530,042
Interest expense on defined benefit plan - (net) 3,877,377 1,049,987
28,367,544 19,580,029
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:
2023 2022
Discount rate 16.75% 13.25%
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries 15.75% 12.25%

Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005) SLIC (2001-2005)

As at 31 December 2023, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was
8 years (2022: 8 years).

Maturity profile (Undiscounted payments)

The Company expects to contribute to the gratuity fund on the advice of the fund’s actuary. The
contributions are equal to the current service cost with adjustment for any deficit.

Projected payments 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Year 1 7,980,748 6,017,254
Year 2 9,542,459 7,194,739
Year 3 11,017,018 8,306,514
Year 4 12,557,585 9,468,057
Year 5 14,077,293 10,613,873
More than year 5 82,609,885 62,285,460

Sensitivity analysis

If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date, had fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 2023 would have been as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the year end

Due to increase in assumptions

2023 2022
Rupees
Discount rate 100 bps 73,326,506 85,980,883 53,492,896 62,724,474
Salary increase 100 bps 85,978,982 73,325,605 62,723,087 53,492,239

11

12

12.1

12.2

12.3

13

Note 2023 2022
Current portion of long term liabilities Rupees Rupees
Long term loans - secured 8 - 505,555,554
Lease liabilities 52,635,293 73,445,731
52,635,293 579,001,285
Short term borrowings - secured
Short term running finance 12.1 & 12.3 - 1,705,540,931

- 1,705,540,931

Short term running finance

This represented utilized amount of short term running finance facilities ("facilities") under
mark-up arrangements available from various commercial banks. These facilities were
secured against charge over current assets amounting to PKR 2,500 million inclusive of 20%
margin along with charge on fixed assets amounting to PKR 500 million. The facilities carried
markup of 3- months KIBOR plus spread of 1.0% per annum (2022: 3 months KIBOR plus
spread of 1.00%) payable quarterly in arrears.

Unavailed credit facilities

Out of total facilities for opening of letters of credit of Rs. 200 million (2022: Rs 150 million) as
at 31 December 2023, unutilized amount as of that date was Rs. 128 million (2022: Rs 150
million).

During th year, the Company had obtained running finance facility amounting to Rs. 500
million (2022: Nil) from Askari Bank Limited, an associated undertaking. This carries
mark-up of T month KIBOR plus 0.20% per annum (2022: Nil) payable quarterly in arrears. As
of the reporting date, this running finance facility has been called off.

Related party

This includes balance of Nil (2022: Rs. 271.80 million) payable to Askari Bank Limited, an
associated undertaking. Note 2023 2022
Trade and other payables Rupees Rupees
Trade and other creditors 13.1 817,757,721 901,663,249
Contract liabilities 13.2 133,178,553 178,556,370
Accrued expenses 739,996,729 621,578,425
Advance against disposal of machine 27 262,655,057 -
Retention money payable 2,325,832 2,325,832
Due to employees 1,357,389 5,860,954
Withholding income tax payable 11,061,563 16,096,715
Withholding sales tax payable 15,309,546 12,066,996
Workers’ Profit Participation Fund payable 13.3 15,109,286 429,988
Workers’ Welfare Fund payable 13.4 5,655,807 -
Payable to provident fund 13.5 8,400,458 15,271,097
Others 1,172,362 1,172,362

2,013,980,303

1,755,021,988
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Note 2023 2022 141 This includes balance of Nil (2022: Rs. 7.6 million) payable to Askari Bank Limited, an

13.1 These include amounts due to the following related parties: Rupees Rupees associated undertaking.
Fauji Foundation 11.648.867 4.614.655 14.2 These represent accrued mark-up on financial guarantee given to Askari Bank Limited on
. N _ o T o behalf of the Company.
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 500,000 -
13.1.1 12,148,867 4,614,655 15 Contingencies and commitments

15.1 Contingencies
13.1.1 These are un-secured, interest free and in the normal course of business for purchase of

goods or services. Income tax

13.2 Contract liabilities represents short term advances received from customers against delivery
of goods in future. Contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year, aggregating to Rs. 178.56
million (2022: Rs. 106.15 million), has been recognized as revenue, during the year.

15.1.1 The Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section 177 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax year 2005, had passed an amended assessment order under
section 122 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs. 34.99 million alleging that the
Company suppressed its sales. The Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) annulled
this assessment order whereas the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) had set aside

13.2.1 Contract liabilities as at the reporting date are expected to be recognized as revenue by the
end of next financial year.

2023 2022 the order of CIR-A and remanded the case back to CIR-A for denovo proceedings. The CIR-A,
13.3  Workers' Profit Participation Fund Payable Rupees Rupees vide his order dated 03 September 2012, has allowed partial relief of Rs. 11.32 million to the
Company. The remaining disputed amount after rectification order under section 221 of the
Opening balance 429,988 429,988 Income Tax Ordinance 2001 dated 16 May 2013 out of Rs. 34.99 million now stands at Rs. 18.28
Charge for the year 14.679.298 ) million. Both the Company and the Department have filed appeals before the ATIR against the
_ — order of CIR-A, which are pending adjudications.

Closing balance 15,109,286 429,988
15.1.2 For the year ended June 30, 2012 i-e tax year 2012 amendment order was framed determining
13.4 Workers' Welfare Fund payable tax at Rs. 74,128,663 as against Rs. 22,753,512 conceded in the return. The CIR (Appeals) in
his order under section 129 dated December 31, 2018 has confirmed the action of the ACIR in
Opening balance - - respect of certain additions and set aside other matters with directions. The Company, being
Charge for the year 5,655,807 _ aggrieved, has filed the appeal before ATIR. The ATIR, though order dated 03 March 2023,
Closing balance 5 455 807 i decided the case in favour of the Company. The department, being aggrieved, has filed an

appeal against the order of ATIR before Lahore High Court which is pending adjudication.

15.1.3 The Company was selected for audit under section 214C for Tax year 2014 as per list
published by FBR. For the Tax year 2014, The Department order in this case has resulted in
demand of Rs. 5,923,267 as against refund of Rs. 2,108,564 claimed in the return. Further the
Company has obtained stay against recovery of above tax demand under section 140 of ITO
2001, and has also filed appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A]
Lahore, which is pending adjudication.

13.5 Employees’ provident fund
All investments out of provident fund have been made in the collective investment schemes,
listed equity and listed debt securities in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.
Note 2023 2022

Rupees

14 Accrued finance cost Rupees 15.1.4 The Company filed application for issuance/adjustment of income tax refunds pertaining to

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks tax year 2019 and 2020 amounting to Rs 677 million, upon which the Deputy

- Long term borrowings - secured - 324,586,005 Commissioner Innland Revenue - DCIR verified and adjusted/issued refunds amounting to

- Short term borrowings - secured 14.1 ) 47703515 Rs.563 million and balance refund amounting to Rs.114 million was rejected. The Company

— filed appeal before CIR-Appeals against rejected refund who vide appellate order dated 22
- - 372,289,520 September, 2023 remanded back the proceedings to DCIR. Consequently, the taxpayer filed
gg applications for appeal effect and there after appeal effect order was e-issued dated 02 gg
b= Mark-up onguarantee January,2024 wherein refund amounting to Rs.98 million was verified and the balance 3
4 - Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 32,712,332 30,000,002 refund amounting to Rs. 46 million was rejected. The Company intends to file appeal against 52
o, - Fauji Foundation 4,232,877 _ the ejection of refunds. &8
EF 142 36,945,209 30,000,002 Sales tax &
L3 36,945,209 402,289,522 L3
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15.1.5 During the year ended 31 December 2018, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR)
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through its order dated 23 October 2018, raised a sales tax demand for the period from July
2016 to June 2017, under section 11(2) and 11(3) of Sales Tax Act, 1990, amounting to Rs.
145.57 million along with penalty of Rs. 7.28 million against inadmissible adjustment of
input tax on goods not related to taxable supplies, non-realization of sales tax on disposal of
fixed assets and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against advertisement. The
Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) and demand
was reduced to 13 million, aggrieved by this order, the Company filed an appeal before ATIR
which is pending adjudication.

15.1.6 The DCIR has concluded the assessment and proceeding through its order u/s 11(2) for the
period from July 2019 to December 2019 and has charged sales tax amounting RS 14,000,000.
The company being aggrieved by the order filed appeal before CIR appeals who, through order
08/2020 dated 29/10/2020 remanded the case back to ACIR for re- assessment . The
department has filed appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

15.1.7 During the year ended 31 December 2018, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR)
issued a show cause notice, dated 09 November 2018, against inadmissible adjustment of
input tax on goods not related to taxable supplies and non-withholding of sales tax from
payment made against advertisement amounting to Rs. 399.60 million. Against the show
cause notice, the ACIR raised a sales tax demand of Rs. 135.34 million along with default
surcharge and penalty. The Company filed an appeal before CIR appeals who decided the case
in favor of the Company through order 10/2020 dated 29 October 2020 and annulled the ACIR
order. The department is in process of filling an appeal with ATIR.

15.1.8 During the year ended 31 December 2021, ADCIR issued a show cause notice, dated 17
February 2021 against inadmissible adjustment of input tax on goods not related to taxable
supplies and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against advertisement.
Against the show cause notice, the ADCIR raised a sales tax demand of Rs. 100 Million along
with default surcharge and penalty. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner
Inland Revenue-Appeals [CIR-A) Lahore on 06 January 2022, which is pending adjudication.

15.1.9 The Company was served with notice under rule 44(4) of the income Tax Rules 2002 dated 15
February 2023 issued by the DCIR followed by a notice under section 161(1 A) of the Ordinance
dated 17 March 2023. The Company filed reply on 30 March, 2023. DCIR issued an order under
section 161(1) of the Ordinance 18 April 2023 wherein total tax was charged at Rs.338,652,977.
The department adjusted the aforementioned amount of alleged tax default by making
adjustment of income tax refunds pertaining tax year(s) 2017 & 2018. The Company filed an
appeal before CIR-Appeals against the above mentioned order under section 161(1) dated 18
April 2023. CIR-Appeals issued appellate order on the matter dated 07 August 2023 wherein
the case was annulled, remanded back to DCIR for re-assessment and confirmed the tax
demand to tune of Rs.33,426,288. The Company being aggrieved filed an appeal before
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) on 04 October 2023 against confirmed tax demand
of Rs.33,426,288 which is pending adjudication.

15.1.10 The department passed an order dated 15 March 2022 and served the same after one year on
14 March 2023 creating a demand of Rs.103 million on account of claim of inadmissible input
sales tax in sales tax returns. Being aggrieved, the Company preferred an appeal before
CIR(A). The CIR(A) remanded the case back to department for fresh proceedings. The
Company has now preferred an appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

15.1.11 The department issued show cause notice alleging adjustment of inadmissible input tax on
goods not related to taxable supplies and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made

15.2
15.2.1

against advertisement services. Against the show cause notice, Department raised sales tax
demand of Rs. 138 million along with default surcharge and penalty. The Company preferred
an appeal before CIR(A). CIR(A) decided the case in favor of the Company through order
dated 29 October 2020 and annulled the department’s order. The department has filed an
appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the
management believes that the Company has strong legal grounds against each case and that
no financial liability is expected to accrue. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these
financial statements.

Commitments

Commitments, for purchase of raw material / stores and capital expenditure outstanding at
the year end were for Rs. 99.24 million (2022: Rs. 66.50 million) and Rs. 88.9 million (2022:Nil),
respectively.

15.2.2 Guarantees aggregating Rs. 21.89 million (2022: Rs. 161.61 million) have been issued by

16

banks on behalf of the Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan State Oil,
Naaval Accounts Karachi, Pakistan Oxygen Limited and Remount veterinary and corps farms
(RV&FC).

Note 2023 2022
Property, plant and equipment Rupees Rupees
Operating fixed assets
Owned assets 8,356,484,835 7,636,519,111
Right of use assets 16.1 218,654,813 211,337,002
8,575,139,648 7,847,856,113
Capital work-in-progress 16.2 453,016,416 290,839,583

9,028,156,064  8,138,695,696
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16.1.4 Disposal of property, plant and equipment

8 b
“,geges 8eg cwzzficg 8=y
) ) Cost / Net book | | roceeds : Mode | particulars
gygeanas BEE SeagsRife E*gg 343 isevatued value Jrnm Gain ot of buyers
YEERESERE fn | d45IERRYE REGR gi 229 Amount disposal disposal
ﬁ§§-—-— _§ I RER™F § 295 BER
_ Rupees
REgmszE 223 REEZEYE gEEe i
87 5 g & =g = H Packing
gzss.. = s e | machine - Selo
£33 g % % . TBA 200 ML 95,835,336 38,584,019 40,996,486 2,412,467 Negotiation Foodtech
FECE ] LR 23 ) BRA
) - Packin
R RN [; [IEEEEEEEE RS Ok machinge - Selo
3 3 TBA 250 ML 78,458,886 37,265,569 39,595,600 2,330,031 Negotiation Foodtech
....... s gl R Assets having
O net book value less
than
g 2 %g SRRE RN I §|§ E Rs.500,000 4,260,850 723,869 2,340,517 1,616,648
T T 2023 178,555,072 76,573,457 82,932,603 6,359,146
Bstceds apse g e
T B §§i§§§5§ 55%135 2022 14,706,706 3,460,555 4,853,962 1,393,407
§§§§§§§§ §§§§ §§§§§§§§ ggﬁj % 16.1.5 The latest revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery,
e B R ) electric and gas installations and other work equipment was carried out on 31 March 2023 by
gapassady 28 s:agzzagls zpat s an independent professional valuer, K.G. Traders (Private) Limited. As per the revaluation
§§§§§§§§§ §E; g §§§§§§§§§ §§§|§ q report, forced sale value of freehold land and buildings on freehold land was Rs. 664.38
- ’ o - 7 million and Rs. 939.25 million, respectively and forced sales value of plant and machinery,
g’gggg : JEANAEIE SERRE O g electric and gas installations and other works equipment was Rs. 5,523 million.
BE™® # 2
- L : The Company's freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and
gg%% - %% """"" gas installations and other work equipment are measured using revaluation model. The
§E= g = ¢ latest revaluation of these assets was carried out on 31 March 2023 by an independent
e | . < professional valuer, K.G. Traders (Private) Limited. Had these assets not been revalued, the
g : ; 3 carrying amount of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric
L £ Z and gas installations and other work equipment would have been as follows:
....... gls - g :‘@
B 1 E Note 2023 2022
3808 g e Wi 5 ’E ; % Rupees Rupees
: oY Ee g B SE HER ! ; ; Freehold land 73,365,999 73,365,999
i J— E : Buildings on freehold land 624,140,785 670,216,420
§§§§§3§§ %i‘l fzeigagy H 1 Plant and machinery - (including plant and
:fi i machinery appearing under right of use assets) 3,765,268,572  4,057,704,854
. §§§§§§§§§ g%gg 2 g%%%ggfég g%g‘; ; é Electric and gas Installations 170,453,451 5174458
RE i i i i : P | Other works equipment 125,642,991 107,815,794 &%
= Hos g3 _ _ 4,758,871,798  4,914,277525 .3
$3 3 : ;;E g 16.2 Capital work-in-progress 28
x @ §a ]
EE i 3§ g 5. & E* ;§E { Plant and machinery 16.2.1 437,067,915 228,617,127 QE
2L g HEEEEE% g E §‘5§§§§§§ E 5 Advance against capital expenditure 16.2.2 15,948,501 62,222,456 <
3 i H I 123 _SSMGEE 208968 B
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16.2.1 Plant and machinery

Waste water treatment plant

Standardization unit for Nurpur cream 2,847,311

Butter churn TA-3200
Evaporator

Hybrid solar

Instant milk powder plant

Biomass modification of chain

grade steam boiler

Waste water treatment plant
Standardization unit for Nurpur cream

Butter churn TA-3200

16.2.2 This represents advance paid to contractor for construction of waste water treatment plant

which is in progress.

16.2.3 The management has assessed the recoverable value of capital work in progress to be higher

2023
Asatol Additions Transfers Asatal
January December
Rupees
223,134,724 - - 223,134,724
29,064,860 - 31,912,171
2,635,092 - (2,635,092) -
- 171,521,020 - 171,521,020
- 2,400,000 (2,400,000) -
- 10,500,000 - 10,500,000
- 10,140,000 (10,140,000) -
228,617,127 223,625,880 (15,175,092) 437,067,915
2022
As at 01 Additions Transfers As at 31
January December
Rupees
223,134,724 - - 223,134,724
- 2,847,311 - 2,847,311
- 2,635,092 - 2,635,092
223,134,724 5,482,403 - 228,617,127

than the carrying amount and hence the amount is not impaired.

Intangible assets

Software
Capital work-in-progress

171 Software

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

171 4,541,191 R

17.2 5,343,576 5,929,326
9,884,767 5,929,326

DEPRECIATION
Book Rate of

As at 01 Additions Transfer | As at 31 As at 01 Charge for | Asat 31 value |amortization

January from CWIP | December | January theyear | December (%)
Secondary sale system 1,983,860 - - 1,983,860 1,983,860 - 1,983,860 - 33.33
Anti-virus 432,032 - - 432,032 432,032 - 432,032 - 33.33
Secondary sale system (Tally) 5,996,916 : - 5996916 5,996,916 - 5,996,916 - 33.33
SAP - HCM Module 2,110,726 - - 2,110,726 2,110,726 - 2,110,726 - 33.33
SAP - ERP 56,292,447 - - 56,292,447 56,292,447 - 56,292,447 - 33.33
Secondary sales automation software z - 1,977,000 1,977,000 = 658,999 658,999 1,318,001 33.33
SAP licenses fee - 4,001,200 - 4,001,200 - 778,010 778,010 3,223,190 33.33

66,815,981 4,001,200 1,977,000 72,794,181 66,815,981 1,437,009 68,252,990 4,541,191

As at 01
NELETY

Additions

Transfer
from CWIP

DEPRECIATION

As at 31
December

Charge for
the year

January

As at 31
December

p

Secondary sale system 1,983,860 = - 1,983,860 1,983,860 _ 1,983,860 _ 33.33
Anti-virus 432,032 - _ 432,032 432,032 - 432,032 - 33.33
Secondary sale system [Tally) 5,996,916 - 5,996,916 5,996,916 - 5,996,916 - 33.33
SAP - HCM Module 2,110,726 - - 2,110,726 1,708,305 402,421 2,110,726 : 33.33
SAP - ERP 56,292,447 - _ 56,292,447 56,292,447 - 56,292,447 - 33.33
66,815,981 - - 66,815,981 66,413,560 402,621 66,815,981 -
17.1.1 The amortization charge has been allocated as follows:
Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Marketing and distribution expenses 30 658,999 —
Administrative expenses 31 778,010 402,421
1,437,009 402,421
17.2 These represent capital expenditure incurred on development of Milk Collection Automated System [MCAS).
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18 Deferred taxation - net Note 2023 2022 18.3 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
Rupees Rupees
The def dt t i f the followi 2023
: Z e.z[re ax assed.]tc:fompnses of the following: Reversal from / [charge to)
eductible temporary differences: : X :
e 625,816,265 i Opening Profit or loss oCl Closing
- unabsorbed depreciation losses 1,488,650,294 1,292,007,992 Rupees
- provisions 25,353,949 25,903,344 _ _
2,160,348,272 1.501.357.047 Deductible / (taxable) temporary difference
Less: Taxable temporary differences: Unabsorbed depreciation losses 11,292,007,992 | 196,642,302 7 |1/488,650,294
: : Busi l i )
- accelerated tax depreciation allowances 963,699,354 856,193,574 uSIness fosses 625,816,265 625,816,265
- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment {1,111,373,541 593,765,725 B 8,202,500 962,993) i £2299,249
) righpt of use assets PR e ' 85,275,377 51,397,748 EEen ey 183,445,711 | (162,917,947) 1| “higsdes
= ! Right of use assets 51,397,748 33,877,629 - 85,275,377
2,160,348,272 1,501,357,047 L . l )t ] [ )
_ 18.3 Accelerated tax depreciation
Deferred taxation - net : - - allowances (856,193,574)| | (107,505,780) - |1963,699,354)
Surplus on revaluation
18.1 As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate unrecognized unused tax losses and minimum tax of property, plantand equipment | (593,765,725) 78,490,268 |(596,098,084) ((1,111,373,541)
credit available to the Company for set off against future taxable profit amount to Rs. 9,169.22
million (2022: Rs. 13,820.52 million) and Rs. 353.16 million (2022: Rs. 159.08 million], - 596,098,084 (596,098,084) =
respectively.
18.2 The expiry of tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized is as follows: Al
Reversal from / (charge to]
2023 2022 Opening Profit or loss OCl Closing
Expiry tax year Nature Rupees Rupees Rupees
2024 Business loss - TY 2018 - 2,492,626,346 Deductible / (taxable)temporary difference
2025 Business loss - TY 2019 2,671,290,831 2,671,290,831 Unused tax losses 1,162,417,618 |(1,162,417,618) - -
2026 Business loss - TY 2020 3,487,579,099 3,487,579,099 Unabsorbed depreciation losses -11,292,007,992 - 11,292,007,992
2027 Business loss - TY 2021 2,353,326,086 2,353,326,084 Minimum Tax U/s 113 136,357,747 | (136,357,747) - -
2028 Business loss - TY 2022 657,026,576 1,133,726,835 Provisions 39,680,226/ | (13,776,882) - 25,903,344
2029 Business loss - TY 2023 - 1,681,967,977 Lease liability 36,834,600 146,611,111 - 183,445,711
. ccelerated tax depreciation
2026 M!n!mum tax - TY 2023 158,641,265 159,080,097 T ——— (681,946,417) | (174,247,157) 1| (856,193,574)
2027 Minimum tax - TY 2024 194,521,905 - Surplus on revaluation of
353,163,170 159,080,097 property, plant and equipment (632,056,043) 38,290,318 - | (593,765,725)
No expiry Unused depreciation loss - 674,808,100
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20

20.1

20.2

21

21.1

21.2

21.3

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Stores, spares and loose tools
Stores 20,458,842 12,472,166
Spares 253,630,662 181,236,630
274,089,504 193,708,796
Less: provision for obsolescence (8,612,801) (8,612,801)
Stock-in-trade 265,476,703 185,095,995

Raw and packing material

- in hand 1,245,004,936 521,653,498
- in transit 14,515,083 17,225,350
1,259,520,019 538,878,848
Work-in-process 84,444,173 157,048,335
Finished goods 803,278,904 586,842,076
2,147,243,096 1,282,769,259
Less: Provision for obsolescence 20.1 (15,837,215) (43,077,665)

20.2  2,131,405,881

1,239,691,594

Movement in provision for obsolescence

Balance as at 01 January 43,077,665 30,504,149
Provision for the year 4,991,031 14,259,508
Written off during the year (32,231,481) (1,685,992)
Balance as at 31 December 15,837,215 43,077,665

The amount charged to the statement of profit or loss on account of write down of finished
goods and work-in- process to net realizable value amounts to Rs. 1.57 million (2022: Rs. 3.64

million).

Trade receivables from contract with customers

Trade debts - unsecured 499,459,786 669,399,647
Allowance for expected credit loss 211 (1,779,553) (111,900,180)
497,680,233 557,499,467
Allowance for expected credit loss
As at 01 January 111,900,180 22,455,914
Charge for the year 33 89,900,000 89,444,266
Amount written off against trade receivables (200,020,627) -
As at 31 December 1,779,553 111,900,180

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and become due after 7 to 90 days of the invoice
date. The decrease in trade receivables pertains to more collections from customers during

the year. Generally, balances outstanding for more than 90 days are treated as default.

The aging analysis of these trade debts have been disclosed in Note 42.5 to these financial

statements.

22

22.1

22.2

223

23

23.1

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
Loan and advances - unsecured
Due from employees - considered good 4,490,093 9,029,958
Advances to suppliers 22.1 24,766,101 94,482,879
22.2 29,256,194 103,512,837
Provision for doubtful advances to suppliers 22.3 - .
29,256,194 103,512,837
Advances to suppliers exceeding Rs.1 million
Categories
- Up to Rs. 1 million 8,319,917 -
- Rs. 1 million to Rs. 2 million 1,507,967 4,707,007
- Rs. 2 million to Rs. 3 million 2,994,994 2,038,714
- Above Rs. 3 million 11,943,223 87,737,158
24,766,101 94,482,879
These are interest free and in the normal course of business.
Provision for doubtful advances to suppliers
As at 01 January - )
Charge for the year 10,217,400 i
Amount written off against advances (10,217,400) i
As at 31 December _ _
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Security deposits 95,861,018 144,098,530
Deposit to collector of customs 7,509,549 -
Advance againt letter of credit 68,742,721 45,227,316
Advance againt bank guarantee 21,894,228 810,000
Prepayments 11,958,973 11,077,484
Other receivables 23.2 42,994,500 43,285,853
248,960,989 244,499,183
Allowance for expected credit loss
- security deposits 23.1 - =
248,960,989 244,499,183

Movement of allowance for expected credit loss on security deposits

As at 01 January -
Charge for the year 11,770,486
Amount written off (11,770,486)

As at 31 December -
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23.2.1

24

24.1

25

25.1

25.2

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
These include balances due from associated undertaking as follows:
Fauji Cereals - 5,829,210
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limiited 1,978 -
Fauji Foundation 11,816,781 _
11,818,759 5,829,210

The maximum aggregate amounts outstanding at any time during the year calculated by
reference to month-end balances are as follows:

2023 2022
Maximum Maximum
Month outstanding Month outstanding
during the year during the year
Rupee Rupee

Fauji Cereals - - January 5,829,210
Fauji Fertilizer Company .
Limiited November 1,978 -
Fauji Foundation December 11,816,781 - i
Interest accrued
Interest accrued on TDRs 241 62,215,078 40,973,562

This represents interest accrued on Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) of Askari Bank Limited, an
associated company.
Tax refunds due from Government

Sales tax refundable - net 25.1
Income tax refundable - net 25.2

1,499,378,986
864,079,469
2,363,458,455

1,275,508,594
1,110,799,660
2,386,308,254

These include provison for sales tax on tea whitener amounting to Rs.438.49 million
(2022: Nil).[ Refer to Note 33])

These include provision for current tax amounting to Rs. 264.64 (2022: Rs.159.05) million.

26

26.1

26.2

26.3

26.3.1

27

27.1

27.2

Note 2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents Rupees Rupees
Cash and bank balances:
Cash in hand 378,240 88,272
With banks on:
- Current accounts 27,892,522 8,577,874
- Saving accounts 26.1 272,569,266 166,594,592
- Dividend accounts - 221,491

26.2 300,461,788 175,393,957
Total cash and bank balances 300,840,028 175,482,229
Short term investments:
Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) - Askari Bank Limited 26.3 1,000,000,000 970,000,000

1,300,840,028 1,145,482,229

These savings accounts earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates
ranging from 14.5% to 20.5% (2022: 10.75% to 14.5%) per annum.

These include balance amounting to Rs.272 million (2022: Rs.108 million) held with Askari
Bank Limited, an associated company.

These carry mark-up at the rate of 17% to 22.5% (2022: 15.8%]) per annum and have one year
maturity with premature encashment option without any surcharge.

Following is movement in TDRs during the year

As at 01 January 970,000,000 -
Additions during the year 2,870,000,000 970,000,000
Encashed during the peirod (2,840,000,000) -
As at 31 December 1,000,000,000 970,000,000

Asset held for sale 271 262,655,057 -

On December 18, 2023, pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, the
Company classified a filling machine as 'asset held for sale’, as these assets were available
for immediate sale in their present condition and their sale was highly probable.

As of the reporting date, the Company has formalized an agreement with the buyer, and the
entire sale proceeds, as mutually agreed upon between the buyer and the Company, has been
received (Refer to note 13]). The Company expects that the machine will be transferred to the
buyer shortly after the reporting date, upon completion of necessary documentation.

Immediately before the classification of filling machine as asset held for sale, the recoverable
amount was estimated and no impairment loss was identified. Following the classification, an
impairment loss of Rs. 1.76 million has been recognised on 31 December 2023 to reduce the
carrying amount of the asset to its fair value less costs to sell. This was recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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28.1

28.2

28.3

28.4

29

Note 2023

2022

Revenue from contracts with customers - net

Gross sales

Less: Sales tax
Discounts, incentives and allowances

Revenue from contracts with customers relates to local (Pakistan) market and represents

Rupees

21,309,182,690

Rupees

13,276,027,616

(395,056,326) (289,355,529)
(1,105,090,605) (635,969,669)
(1,500,146,931) (925,325,198

19,809,035,759

12,350,702,418

sale of dairy and allied products. Timing of revenue recognition is at point of time.

The Company receives consideration from its customers in advance (in case of 70% of

customers). In other case, credit term of 30 to 90 days is allowed.

Contract balances

Trade receivables from contract with customers

Contract liabilities

Revenue from two of the customers (2022: one customer] of the Company represents more

than 10% of the Company’s total revenue.

Cost of Revenue

Raw materials consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Freight and forwarding

Power and fuel

Packing materials consumed

Stores and spares consumed

Repair and maintenance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance
Communication, establishment & others
Printing and stationery

Legal and professional charges
Insurance

Others

Balance carried forward

497,680,233
133,178,553

12,200,438,326
291 342,893,411
359,967,390
541,047,444
2,533,183,580
143,344,845
328,017,631
511,132,496
266,588
16,749,095
632,634
2,231,999
5,462,353
7,269,320
5,153,112

16.1.1

557,499,467
178,556,370

7,807,305,847
202,052,188
276,933,561
576,422,508
1,996,705,445
85,632,938
234,457,305
427,012,649
287,913
10,627,809
874,365
1,099,677
1,971,708
4,859,210
11,572,289

16,997,790,224

11,637,815,412

Note

2023

2022

Cost of Revenue (Continued)

29.1

30

30.1

Balance brought forward
Adjustment of work-in-process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufacture
Adjustment of finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

20

20

Rupees

16,997,790,224

Rupees

11,637,815,412

157,048,335 118,186,971
(84,444,173) (157,048,335)
72,604,162 (38,861,364)

17,070,394,386

11,598,954,048

543,764,411 326,816,255
(787,441,689) (543,764,411)
(243,677,278) (216,948,158])

16,826,717,108

11,382,005,892

Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

Providend fund

Long term accumulated compensated absences

Gratuity

Marketing and distribution expenses

Freight and forwarding

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Repair and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Vehicles' running and maintenance
Advertisement and sales promotion
Insurance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets
Communication, establishment and others

30.1

16.1.1
17.1.1

11,365,760 10,375,862
3,585,600 3,399,677
8,629,216 7,324,310
23,580,576 21,099,849
188,415,659 164,894,207
413,446,183 293,438,640
9,075,931 2,097,158
7,952,855 6,138,774
11,667,622 11,857,899
84,316,132 63,893,415
571,515,052 768,783,394
111,855 766,507
15,853,275 10,851,548
658,999 -

20,468,583 15,564,206

1,323,482,146

1,338,285,748

Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

Providend fund

Long term accumulated compensated absences

Gratuity

11,248,580 10,738,008
3,585,600 3,399,686
8,629,216 7,324,325

23,463,396 21,462,019
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31.1

31.2

w
N

Note 2023 2022
Administrative expenses Rupees Rupees
Salaries, wages and other benefits 31.1 395,645,296 233,904,166
Travelling and conveyance 9,137,068 4,382,206
Directors’ meeting fee 38 12,530,000 15,760,000
Rent, rates and taxes 3,119,015 1,817,031
Entertainment 5,162,575 2,893,475
Communication and establishment 19,820,010 14,472,814
Printing and stationery 12,737,975 2,802,506
Electricity, gas and water 16,546,710 13,500,947
Insurance 1,133,642 1,121,874
Repair and maintenance 15,373,661 6,157,033
Vehicles' running and maintenance 35,471,246 22,831,331
Subscription 31,766,872 25,914,145
Legal and professional charges 75,489,340 28,739,888
Auditors’ remuneration 31.2 3,200,000 2,890,000
Cash security charges 12,071,396 4,717,221
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16.1.1 65,950,271 59,248,696
Amortization of intangible assets 17.1.1 778,010 402,421
Others 6,396,122 4,618,288
722,329,209 446,174,042
Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:
Providend fund 8,970,085 7,202,203
Long term accumulated compensated absences 1,792,800 1,699,843
Gratuity 4,314,608 3,662,161
15,077,493 12,564,207
Auditors’ remuneration
Statutory audit fee 1,900,000 1,800,000
Half yearly review 450,000 315,000
Certification charges 500,000 425,000
Out-of-pocket expenses 350,000 350,000
3,200,000 2,890,000
Other income
Income from financial assets
Profit on TDRs 139,972,886 141,124,932
Profit on saving accounts 79,049,367 37,974,751

33

33.1

Note 2023 2022

Income from non-financial assets Rupees Rupees
Sale of scrap 10,718,427 18,906,962
Net income from sale of fertilizers and helicaps 2,375,195 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 16.1.4 6,359,146 1,393,407

238,475,021 199,400,052
Other expenses
Exchange loss 3,498,595 2,351,890
Contractual deductions - 41,531,990
Provision for sale tax on tea whitener 33.1 438,493,470 -
Allowance for expected credit loss 211 89,900,000 89,444,266
Provision for doubtful advances 223 10,217,400 -
Allowance for expected credit loss on security deposits 233 11,770,486 -
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 14,679,298 -
Impairment loss on asset held for sale 1,759,613 -
Workers Welfare Fund 5,655,807 -
Others 1,964,206 -

577,938,872 133,328,146

The Collector of Customs changed the classification of tea whitener through an order dated

10 December 2021 and determined that sales tax is leviable on tea whiteners at standard rate.
Being aggrieved, the Company challenged the order of Collector of Customs before
Honourable Lahore High Court which set aside the order dated 10 December 2021 and
instructed the Collector of Customs to determine the classification of tea.

During the year, the Collector of Customs issued an order, via public notice dated 4 April 2023,
classifying Tea Whiteners as ‘Milky drink’, thus subject to sales tax at the rate of 18%. Being
aggrieved, the Company has filed an appeal before Honourable Lahore High Court against the
aforementioned order of Collector of Customs. The LHC converted the petition into
representation before Chairman FBR and directed the Chairman vide order dated 14 July
2023 to decide the matter after providing an opportunity of being heard. FBR via its Member
(Customs Policy) issued the said classification order on 19 September 2023, upholding the
earlier decision of Collector of Customs. Being aggreived, the Company has again filed a
petition before LHC to set aside the Impugned Order dated 19 September 2023 and Impugned
Public Notice dated 04 April 2023 for being issued on a misapplication of the law and without
lawful authority. The LHC vide its order dated 05 October 2023 has issued a stay order against
the Impugned Classification. The management of the Company, based on advice of its legal
council, is confident that the matter will be decided in the favour of the Company. However,
the Company, being prudent, has recognized provision for sale tax on tea whitener in these
financial statements.
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35

35.1

36

Note 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Finance cost
Islamic mode of financing
- Short term borrowings - 20,818,876
Interest / mark-up on interest / mark-up based loans
- Long term loans 244,735,614 910,432,136
- Short term borrowings 58,277,303 277,245,079
- Lease liabilities 11,594,897 22,117,040
Bank charges and commission 9,184,782 29,153,389
Income tax 323,792,596 1,259,766,520
Income tax:
- Charge for the year 264,648,647 159,052,640
- Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (411,375) -
Deferred tax:
- Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (596,098,084) -

A (331,860,812) 159,052,640
Tax charge reconciliation:
Profit before taxation 273,250,849 (2,009,457,878)
Tax expense on accounting profit (29% as per Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001) 79,242,746 (582,742,785)
Tax effect of:
Change in expected tax rate 240,773,196 -
Minimum tax credit not recognized 194,521,905 295,410,387
Business losses adjusted during the period (80,338,128) -
Effect of super tax 8,310,841 -
Difference in tax rate of income (12,749,473) -
Unrecognised deferred tax on business losses - 1,707,476,267
Recognition of previously unrecognised business losses  (625,816,265) (1,261,539,225)
Recognition of previously unrecognised depreciation losses  (196,642,302) -
Others 60,836,668 447,996
Earning / [Loss] per share [331 ,860,81 2] 1 59,052,640
Earning / (Loss) per share - basic and diluted
Profit / (Loss) for the year Rupees 605,111,661 (2,168,510,518)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year Number 2,330,224,102 1,584,088,159
Earning/ (Loss) per share - basic and diluted Rupees 0.26 (1.37)

Note

2023 2022

Rupees

37 Cash and cash equivalents

Rupees

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the following:

Cash and bank balances 26 300,840,028 175,482,229
Short term investments 26 1,000,000,000 970,000,000
Running finance balances 12.1 - (1,705,540,931)
1,300,840,028 (560,058,702)

38 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including
certain benefits, to Chief Executive, directors and executives of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Non Executive Directors Executives
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Managerial Rupees
remuneration 22,529,026 20,479,350 = _ 129,557,414 129,208,710
Meeting fee - - 12,530,000 15,760,000 - -
Provident fund 2,299,353 2,047,940 - - 13,028,749 12,919,324
House rent 10,138,071 9,215,710 - - 116,601,672 108,449,115
Utilities 2,252,901 2,047,940 . _ 12,955,741 12,920,871
Relocation allowance - . = g 1,898,750 925,000
Bonus 18,000,000 3,000,000 - 113,738,512* -
Car Allowances - - - - 40,505,000 31,130,000
Reimbursement of
expenses 4,320,000 3,400,000 - - 5,355,820 2,474,913

59,539,351 40,190,940 12,530,000 15,760,000 433,641,658 298,027,933

1 2 9 10 54 50

*These represent provision for bonus expense which is subject to annual performance

appraisal.

38.1 The Company also provides Chief Executive and some of its executives with company

maintained cars in accordance with the Company’s policy.

Factory employees

Total employees

2023 2022

2023 2022

39 Number of employees (Number of persons)

Total number of employees

(Number of persons)

as at 31 December 425 392 603 583
Average number of
employees during the year 424 415 596 604
40 Capacity and production Canacity Broduction
2023 2022 2023 2022
Liquid products - liters 210,410,750 221,312,000 58,527,307 59,041,145
Non - Liquid products - Kg 7,156,800 6,318,709 3,454,028 2,791,413

The actual production is according to market demand.
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41 Related party transactions and balances Name of Relationship Nature of 2023 2022

' : ! : . . . theC t ti R
Related parties comprise of parent company, associated companies, directors, entities with ol S ——— Rupees i i
common directorship, post employment plans and key management personnel. Balances are FFBL Power Associated Purchase of coal . 5294322
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements. The Company in the normal course of Company Undertaking Shares issuance against cash  4,000,000,000 i
business carries out transactions with related parties. Significant transactions with related Limited (Shareholding and
parties are as follows: common
directorship)
Name of - - Nature of 2023 2022
the Company et transactions Rupees Rupees
. FFC Energy Associated Shares issuance against cash 4,650,000,000 B}
Associated Limited Undertaking
Undertakings _ _ (Shareholding and
Fauji Fertilizer Parent Company  TA/DA, repair and maintenance common
Bin Qasim (Shareholding and and rent expense charged by directorship)
Limited (FFBL) common related party 217,228 11,274
directorship) Expense of IT facilities charged by _ _
related party 19,970,258 10,468,680 Foundation Associated Purchase of solar panel 125,714,295 -
Expense charged to related party Eolar (Private) }Jcndertaklng
by the Company 47,334 8,200 NELOY IELIVALEL SAOITITON .
Limited directorship)
Consultancy fee charged by related
party - 557,500
Finance cost charged by related Employee’s Post employee Contribution for the year 69,266,604 60,535,059
party 2,712,329 15,000,000 Provident benefit
Conversion of loan as subscription Fund Trust plan
received against right issue &
share issuance agaist accrued _
markup 708,749,800 - Employee’s Post Payment to gratuity fund 7,924,431 50,000,000
Purchase of Fertilizer 16,275,089 B} Gratuity Fund  employee
benefit plan
Fauji Fertilizer  Associated Purchase of Fertilizer 13,726,860 - - -
Compan Undertaking Directors Meeting fee 12,530,000 15,760,000
Limited (FFC) ~ (Common_
directorship) Key Remuneration and benefits 163,387,857 138,202,273
Management
Fauji Foundation Associated Management shared services Fecsennet
Undertakin_g charged by related party 5,728,947 4,992,486
[C%f;?rr‘:e:r?ldmg and ghare deposit money received 350,000,000 2,000,000,000 41.1 Associated companies / related parties percentage of shareholding has been disclosed in note
directorship) Consultancy fee charged by related 4.2.4.
party 1,302,265 847,500
TA/DA and boarding expenses
charged by related party - 1,019,520
Finance cost charged 4,232,877 -
Expenses charged to related party
"o by Company 7,957,608 - "o
g E RE
1] 1]
tuw Tw
85  AskariBank Associated Finance cost charged by related 8%
o Limited Undertaking party 23,528,808 103,107,131 Su
£3 (Common. Profit on TDR 139,972,886 141,124,932 E3
< directorship) : : <L
e Interest income on saving e
L3 accounts 75,484,150 22,748,520 L3
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42
42.1

42.2

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including

interest rate risk, price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's
overall risk management program focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to
manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility and provide maximum return to
shareholders. Risk management is carried out by the company finance and planning

department under policied approved by the senior management.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the

Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in
its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Company's exposure to financial risk, the way these risks affects the financial position
and performance and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of
changes in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the
issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and
demand of securities and liquidity in the market. The Company incurs financial liabilities to
manage its market risk. All such activities are carried out with the approval of the Board. The
Company is exposed to currency and interest rate risk only.

42.2.1 Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. This exist due to the
company's exposure resulting from outstanding import payments and foreign commercial
transactions.

The Company is exposed to exchange risk arising from currency exposures mainly with
respect to the Euro and US Dollar on import of raw material, packing material and stores and
spares. Currently, the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts
payable to the foreign entities. The Company’s is exposed to foreign exchange risk as at 31
December 2023 as it has financial instruments denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the Company.

A foreign exchange risk management policy has been developed and approved by the
management. The policy allows the Company to take currency exposure for limited periods
within predefined limits while open exposures are rigorously monitored. The Company

ensures to the extent possible that it has options available to manage exposure, either
through forward contracts, options or prepayments, etc. subject to the prevailing foreign
exchange regulations.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:

2023
Rupees ‘000 EURO '000 Rupees '000 Dollar '000
Creditors 21,854,296 70,156 - -
2022
Rupees ‘000 EURO '000 Rupees ‘000 Dollar ‘000
Creditors - - 5,807,719 25,657

The following significant exchange rate applied during the year:

Average rates Reporting date rate

(Bid-Offer average)

2023 2022 2023 2022
EURO 276.3 221.51 311.51 241.19
Dollar 254.05 202.25 281.74 226.36

Sensitivity analysis

A 15% strengthening of the functional currency against foreign currency at 31 December
would have increased profit and loss by Rs. 3,278 million (2022: Rs. 0.871 million). A 15%
weakening of the functional currency against USD at 31 December would have had the equal
but opposite effect of these amounts. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain
constant.

42.2.2 Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate
risk or currency risk], whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instruments or its issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded
in the market. As at 31 December 2023, the Company is not exposed to any significant other
price risk as it has no such financial instruments.

42.2.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial

instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Company's interest
rate risk arised from short and long-term borrowings and obligations under finance lease. As
at 31 December 2023, the company is exposed to interest rate risk only due to obligation
under finance lease as the Company has repaid all of its short and long term borrowings.
Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from mismatch of financial assets and liabilities that
mature or reprice in a given period. The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a
regular basis by monitoring interest rate trends to determine whether they should enter into
hedging alternatives.
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42.3

42.4

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’'s interest bearing financial
instruments is as follows:

2023 2022 2023 2022
Effective rate Rupees Rupees
Financial assets
Fixed rate instruments
Saving accounts 14.5% to 20.5% 10.75% to 14.5% 272,569,266 166,594,592
Term Deposit Receipts 17% to 22.5% 15.8% 1,000,000,000 970,000,000

Total exposure

1,272,569,266 1,136,594,592

Financial liabilities
Fixed rate instruments

8.20% to0 13.59% 8.20% to 13.59% 127,015,862

Lease liabilities 52,635,293

Variable rate instruments
Long term loans - 9.85% to 17.26% -

Short term borrowings - 9.35% to 16.76% -
Total exposure -

9,482,593,723
1,705,540,931
7,188,134,654

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk on its fixed rate instruments as the Company
does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss
of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At 31 December 2023, if interest rate on variable rate financial instruments has been 5%
constant, profit before tax for the year would have been Rs. Nil (2022: Rs. 359.41 million) /
lower interest expense on variable rate financial liabilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to discharge its contractual obligations. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables), deposits, advances,
loans, interest accrued, short term investments, other receivables and from its financing
activities including deposits with banks.

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Note 2023 2022

Financial assets at amortized cost Rupees Rupees

Security deposits 23 117,950,486 153,638,477
Trade receivables from contract with customers 21 497,680,233 557,499,467
Due from employees 22 4,490,093 9,029,958
Other receivables 23 44,603,852 43,285,853
Interest accrued 24 62,215,078 40,973,562
Bank balances 26 300,461,788 175,393,957
Term Deposit Receipts (TDRs) 26 1,000,000,000 970,000,000

2,027,401,530 1,949,821,274

Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
for trade debts at the reporting date are with dealers within the country.

42.5 Credit quality and impairment
Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where
available, or to historical information about counterparty default rates. All counterparties,
with the exception of customers and utility Companies, have external credit ratings
determined by various credit rating agencies. Credit quality of customers is assessed by
reference to historical defaults rates and present ages.
Counter parties with external credit ratings
These include banking companies and financial institutions, which are counterparties to bank
balances, TDRs and interest accrued. Credit risk is considered minimal as these
counterparties have reasonably high credit ratings as determined by various credit rating
agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with these counterparties and
considering their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance
by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Following are the credit ratings
of counterparties with external credit ratings:
Rating Rating 2023 2022
Institutions Long term Rating Agency Rupees Rupees
Bank balances and TDRs
National Bank Of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 212,507 233,432
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS - 294,719
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 1,289,789,997 873,515,891
JS Bank Al+ AA- PACRA 1,270 133,116
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 579 -
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 1,600,858 29,927,268
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 1,474 540,000
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 67,989 240,263,493
Bank Islami Pakistan A1 AA- PACRA - 284,999
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 7,665 7,747
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 8,760,310 139,343
Dubai Islamic Bank A-1+ AA JCR-VIS - 53,949
Bank Albaraka A-1 A+ JCR-VIS 19,140 -

1,300,461,789

1,145,393,957
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Rating Rating 2023 2022
Institutions Long term Rating Agency Rupees Rupees
Interest accrued on term deposit receipts (TDRs)
Askari Bank Limited AT+ AA+ PACRA 62,215,078 40,973,562

I~
!\J
o~

Counter parties without external credit ratings

Trade receivables from contract with customers
These mainly include customers which are counter parties to trade debts. As explained in

note 2.11, the Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade debts. Trade debts are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. An impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage different other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past
due for more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. The Company does not
hold collateral as security. The aging of trade debts at the reporting date is as follows:

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
0 - 90 days 452,347,903 412,295,555
91 - 180 days 21,051,432 10,326,886
181 - 365 days 616,220 32,871,289
Above 365 days 25,444,231 213,905,917
499,459,786 669,399,647
Allowance for expected credit loss (1,779,553)  (111,900,180)
497,680,233 557,499,467

Security deposits, other receivables and due from employees

The Company has assessed, based on historical experience and available securities, that the
expected credit loss associated with these financial assets is trivial and therefore no
impairment charge has been accounted for. The counterparties for which external credit
ratings were not available have been assessed by reference to internal credit ratings
determined based on their historical information for any default in meeting obligations.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to
the Company’s total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of financial instruments is
broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-worthy
counterparties there-by mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

42.7 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash
and marketable securities and ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. The
Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view
to maintain an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The
Company's finance department aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping regular
committed credit lines available. The management uses different methods which assists it in
monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing the return on investments. Typically the
Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses for a reasonable period, including the servicing of financial obligation; this excludes
the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as
natural disasters. In addition, the Company maintains an unavailed lines of credit.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the reporting to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Carrying Contractual Less than Between
amount cash flows 1 year 1to5years

At 31 December 2023 = = -—--——--mmmmmmmmmmmmoeee- Rupees-------=-—--mcmmmcmmm v
Lease liabilities 52,635,293 54,848,284 54,848,284 -
Trade and other payables 1,854,430,641  1,854,430,641 1,854,430,641 -
Accrued finance cost 36,945,209 36,945,209 36,945,209 -

1,944,011,143  1,946,224,134 1,946,224,134 -
At 31 December 2022
Lease liabilities 127,015,862 142,125,935 85,953,292 56,172,643
Long term loans 5,988,149,277 5,988,149,277 505,555,554 5,482,593,723

Trade and other payables  1,548,301,907
Accrued finance cost 402,289,522
1,705,540,931

9.771,297,499

1,548,301,907 1,548,301,907 -
402,289,522 402,289,522 -
1,705,540,931 1,705,540,931 -

9,786,407,572  4,247,641,206 5,538,766,366

Short term borrowings

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier, or at
significantly different amounts.

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of
interest / mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of interest / mark-up have been
disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements.
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Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability; or
- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would

use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for

which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the unconsolidated
financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

43.1 Fair value hierarchy 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets measured at fair value

------------------ Rupees---------=--------
Revalued Property plant and equipment
Freehold land - 781,625,000 -
Buildings on freehold land - - 1,042,856,420
Plant and machinery (including right of use asset) - - 6,156,619,297
Electric and gas installations - - 174,781,055
Other works equipment - - 160,924,774

- 781,625,000 7,535,181,546

43.2

2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Rupees

Assets measured at fair value
Revalued Property plant and equipment
Freehold land - 751,562,500 -
Buildings on freehold land - - 891,054,759
Plant and machinery (including right of use asset] - - 5,869,373,026
Electric and gas installations - - 8,163,426
Other works equipment = - 142,714,126

- 751,562,500 6,911,305,337

Movements of the above mentioned assets and surplus on revaluation of these assets have
been disclosed in Note 16.1 and Note 7, respectively to these financial statements. There
were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year and there were no changes in
valuation techniques during the years.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values

The Company obtains independent valuations for its certain classes of property, plant and
equipment (more particularly described below] at least every three years. At the end of each
reporting period, the management updates its assessment of the fair value of each asset
mentioned above, taking into account the most recent independent valuation. The
management determines an asset’s value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
Level 2 fair value of land has been derived using a sales comparison approach. Sale prices of
comparable land in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
location and size of the property. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
price per square foot. Level 3 fair value of building on freehold land has been determined
using a depreciated replacement cost approach, whereby, current cost of construction of a
similar building in a similar location has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation rate to
arrive at present market value. Level 3 fair value of plant and machinery, electric and gas
installations and other work equipments has been determined using a depreciated
replacement cost approach, whereby, the current replacement cost of items of similar
make/origin, capacity and level of technology has been adjusted using a suitable depreciation
rate on account of normal wear and tear.
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Description 2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Significant unobservable
inputs

Quantitative data/ range and
relationship to the fair value

Revalued Property plant and equipment

Buildings on freehold

land 1,042,856,420 891,054,759
Plantand machinery  6,156,619,297 5,869,373,026
Electric and gas

installations 174,781,055 8,163,426
Other works equipment 160,924,774 142,714,126

Cost of construction of a new
similar building.

Suitable depreciation rate
to arrive at depreciated
replacement value.

Cost of acquisition of similar
plant and machinery with similar

level of technology.

Suitable depreciation rate to arrive

at depreciated replacement value.

Cost of acquisition of similar
electric installations with similar

level of technology.

Suitable depreciation rate to arrive

at depreciated replacement value.

Cost of acquisition of similar electric
installations with similar level of

technology.

Suitable depreciation rate to arrive

at depreciated replacement value.

The market value has been
determined by using a suitable
depreciation factor on cost of
constructing a similar new
building. Higher, the estimated
cost of construction of a new
building, higher the fair value.
Further, higher the depreciation
rate, the lower the fair value of
the building.

The market value has been
determined by using cost of
acquisition of similar plant and
machinery with similar level of
technology and applying a
suitable  depreciation factor
based on remaining useful lives
of plant and machinery. The
higher the cost of acquisition of
similar plant and machinery,
higher the fair value of plant and
machinery. Further, higher the
depreciation rate, the lower the
fair value of plant and
machinery.

The market value has been
determined by using cost of
acquisition of similar electric
installations with similar level of
technology and applying a
suitable  depreciation factor
based on remaining useful lives
of electric installations. The
higher the cost of acquisition of
similar electric installations,
higher the fair value of tools and
equipment. Further, higher the
depreciation rate, the lower the
fair value of electric installations.

The market value has been
determined by using cost of
acquisition of similar
equipments with similar level of
technology and applying a
suitable  depreciation factor
based on remaining useful lives
of electric installations. The
higher the cost of acquisition of
similar  works  equipments,
higher the fair value of tools and
equipment. Further, higher the
depreciation rate, the lower the
fair value of other works
equipments.

43.3 Fair value of financial instruments

44

Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair value of the
financial assets and liabilities is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at
the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. The
Company's financial assets consist of loans and advances, short term deposits and
investments, interest accrued, trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances. Its
financial liabilities consist of lease liabilities, long term loans, short term borrowings, trade
and other payables (excluding statutory payables), and accrued finance cost. The above
financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities of these instruments. The management assessed that fair value of
loans and advances, short term deposits and investments, interest accrued, trade and other
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and other payables and accrued finance cost
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

Capital risk management

The Board’s policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor
and market confidence and to sustain the future development of its business. The Board of
Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the Company defines as operating
income divided by total capital employed.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

() to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may, for example, adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, arrange new lines of credit or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during
the year nor the Company is subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital
employed. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables and accrued markup.
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47 Corresponding figures FORM 34

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, where necessary, for better THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
and fair presentation. However no significant reclassifications / restatements have been (Section 227(2)(f))
made, other than the following: PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

1.1 Name of the Company FAUJI FOODS LIMITED

Re-arranged from  Re-arranged to 2022 2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at  31-12-2023
. _ sipess 2:2 Number of Shareholdings
Provision for taxation Tax refunds due from Government 159,052,640 Shareholders Erom To Total Shares Held
Loans and advances  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 46,037,316
1349 1 100 63,362
47.1 These reclassifications did not have any impact on amounts presented in the statement of 1232 ;g} 1_333 12;3:2?;
financial position, as of 01 January 2023, accordingly, no third statement of financial position 3428 1,001 5,000 10,150,168
has been presented. 1436 5,001 10,000 11,808,639
532 10,001 15,000 6,934,149
48  Date of authorization of issue 436 15,001 20,000 8,131,182
These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the g?; gg'ggl gg'ggg 2'323'322
Company on 23 January, 2024. 137 30,001 35,000 4,544,558
107 35,001 40,000 4,162,905
b4 40,001 45,000 2,768,922
149 45,001 50,000 7,384,217
51 50,001 55,000 2,723,610
59 55,001 60,000 3,457,330
33 60,001 65,000 2,095,835
37 65,001 70,000 2,543,871
40 70,001 75,000 2,948,582
32 75,001 80,000 2,531,622
13 80,001 85,000 1,073,574
21 85,001 90,000 1,864,981
" 90,001 95,000 1,029,157
17 95,001 100,000 11,679,179
23 100,001 105,000 2,362,423
16 105,001 110,000 1,738,348
9 110,001 115,000 1,016,490
16 115,001 120,000 1,907,336
14 120,001 125,000 1,739,907
10 125,001 130,000 1,283,350
2 130,001 135,000 267,591
8 135,001 140,000 1,109,554
" 140,001 145,000 1,572,004
23 145,001 150,000 3,446,399
6 150,001 155,000 921,200
6 155,001 160,000 954,018
9 160,001 165,000 1,466,964
9 165,001 170,000 1,516,983
- 3 170,001 175,000 525,000 =
gg 7 175,001 180,000 1,246,920 Q=
SE 4 180,001 185,000 734,921 SE
ty 2 185,001 190,000 373,200 to
ES 6 190,001 195,000 1,160,503 gg
EE (],w\ 35 195,001 200,000 6,981,426 E";
Em ] 8 200,001 205,000 1,615,913 ER®
S= WaN— M/ /Eg : 3 205,001 210,000 630,000 S5
£ Chairman Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer i A0 &R0 1065463 £
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FORM 34 FORM 34

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f)) (Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
2.2 Number of Shareholdings 2.2 Number of Shareholdings
Shareholders From To Total Shares Held Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
3 215,001 220,000 656,985 1 555,001 560,000 556,572
6 220,001 225,000 1,338,216 1 565,001 570,000 565,500
2 225,001 230,000 458,000 1 575,001 580,000 580,000
3 230,001 235,000 701,501 4 595,001 600,000 2,396,500
3 235,001 240,000 712,348 2 610,001 615,000 1,221,080
2 240,001 245,000 485,001 1 630,001 635,000 635,000
10 245,001 250,000 2,489,000 1 635,001 640,000 637,000
4 255,001 260,000 1,031,358 2 640,001 645,000 1,287,100
3 265,001 270,000 810,000 1 645,001 650,000 646,000
3 270,001 275,000 819,500 1 665,001 670,000 670,000
4 275,001 280,000 1,106,282 1 680,001 685,000 681,600
1 280,001 285,000 282,000 6 695,001 700,000 4,200,000
4 285,001 290,000 1,147,835 2 710,001 715,000 1,430,000
1 290,001 295,000 291,000 1 715,001 720,000 719,000
19 295,001 300,000 5,696,699 1 730,001 735,000 730,504
3 300,001 305,000 910,500 1 745,001 750,000 750,000
3 305,001 310,000 918,739 1 755,001 760,000 758,000
4 310,001 315,000 1,256,000 2 785,001 790,000 1,577,592
2 320,001 325,000 650,000 2 795,001 800,000 1,600,000
2 345,001 350,000 700,000 1 800,001 805,000 801,450
2 350,001 355,000 704,000 1 805,001 810,000 810,000
1 355,001 360,000 355,500 1 835,001 840,000 839,945
2 365,001 370,000 732,643 1 840,001 845,000 843,798
3 375,001 380,000 1,130,862 1 850,001 855,000 851,434
1 380,001 385,000 385,000 1 860,001 865,000 864,000
2 390,001 395,000 789,003 1 870,001 875,000 871,500
5 395,001 400,000 1,996,000 3 895,001 900,000 2,700,000
2 400,001 405,000 804,191 1 930,001 935,000 930,718
2 405,001 410,000 818,400 1 985,001 990,000 985,995
1 410,001 415,000 415,000 5 995,001 1,000,000 4,996,000
1 420,001 425,000 425,000 1 1,000,001 1,005,000 1,003,122
3 425,001 430,000 1,282,938 2 1,010,001 1,015,000 2,027,183
1 440,001 445,000 441,845 1 1,015,001 1,020,000 1,019,050
3 445,001 450,000 1,349,000 1 1,045,001 1,050,000 1,050,000
1 450,001 455,000 450,800 2 1,095,001 1,100,000 2,196,143
2 455,001 460,000 916,229 1 1,125,001 1,130,000 1,127,500
1 460,001 465,000 460,336 1 1,135,001 1,140,000 1,140,000
= 1 490,001 495,000 495,000 1 1,165,001 1,170,000 1,166,240 =
g.*g 20 495,001 500,000 9,997,000 1 1,170,001 1,175,000 1,171,500 9,2
35 1 500,001 505,000 505,000 4 1,195,001 1,200,000 4,800,000 ﬁ.g
to 1 505,001 510,000 510,000 1 1,205,001 1,210,000 1,207,900 Eo
EE 1 510,001 515,000 511,000 1 1,230,001 1,235,000 1,231,845 EE
o= 1 520,001 525,000 525,000 1 1,245,001 1,250,000 1,250,000 o=
Elfu 1 530,001 535,000 530,357 1 1,295,001 1,300,000 1,300,000 EE
1 535,001 540,000 540,000 1 1,320,001 1,325,000 1,322,000
Q 3 545,001 550,000 1,650,000 1 1,325,001 1,330,000 1,325,500
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FORM 34

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

2.2 Number of Shareholdings

Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
1 1,365,001 1,370,000 1,365,893
1 1,385,001 1,390,000 1,390,000
1 1,395,001 1,400,000 1,400,000
4 1,495,001 1,500,000 6,000,000
1 1,560,001 1,565,000 1,564,807
1 1,595,001 1,600,000 1,600,000
1 1,645,001 1,650,000 1,645,536
1 1,655,001 1,660,000 1,658,110
1 1,675,001 1,680,000 1,680,000
2 1,695,001 1,700,000 3,400,000
1 1,750,001 1,755,000 1,750,207
1 1,790,001 1,795,000 1,791,000
1 1,845,001 1,850,000 1,845,784
1 1,855,001 1,860,000 1,857,698
1 1,895,001 1,900,000 1,900,000
1 1,900,001 1,905,000 1,901,000
3 1,995,001 2,000,000 6,000,000
1 2,050,001 2,055,000 2,055,000
1 2,405,001 2,410,000 2,407,857
1 2,545,001 2,550,000 2,550,000
1 2,830,001 2,835,000 2,833,003
1 3,000,001 3,005,000 3,001,497
1 4,995,001 5,000,000 5,000,000
1 5,230,001 5,235,000 5,231,000
1 5,555,001 5,560,000 5,558,800
1 5,850,001 5,855,000 5,852,599
1 6,485,001 6,490,000 6,487,500
1 6,685,001 6,690,000 6,687,302
1 6,780,001 6,785,000 6,784,405
2 9,995,001 10,000,000 20,000,000
1 18,010,001 18,015,000 18,010,964
1 67,370,001 67,375,000 67,371,916
1 399,995,001 400,000,000 400,000,000
1 464,995,001 465,000,000 465,000,000
1 1,205,575,001 1,205,580,000 1,205,576,237
12077 2,519,963,139

FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

2.3 Categories of shareholders

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officers,
and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies,
undertakings and related
parties. ([Parent Company)

2.3.3 NIT and ICP

2.3.4 Banks Development
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies

2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual
Funds

2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10%
or more

2.3.8 General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
1- Investment Companies
2- Joint Stock Companies
3- Other Companies

3. Signature of Company Secretary
4. Name of Signatory

5. Designation

6. CNIC Number

7. Date

Share held Percentage
349,421 0.0139%
2,137,948,153 84.8405%
258,300 0.0103%
3,345,784 0.1328%
176,569 0.0070%
4,224,327 0.1676%
2,070,576,237 82.1669%
309,821,848 12.2947%
3,552,662 0.1410%
318,000 0.0126%
58,058,288 2.3039%
1,909,787 0.0758%

Y

Brig Hamid Mahmood Dar (Retd)
Company Secretary
35201-7127628-1

December 31, 2023
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Blue Area, Islamabad January 26, 2000

Circular No. 1 of 2000

Sub: GUIDELINES FORATTENTING GENERAL MEETINGS AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The shares of a number of listed Companies are now being maintained as “book entry Security” on
the Central Depository System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC).
It has come to the notice of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of
relevant documents in the matter of beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC
for purposes of attending the general meetings and for verification of instruments of proxies. The
issue has been examined and pending the further instruction to be issued in this regard, the
following guideline for the convenience of the listed Companies and the beneficial owners are laid
down:

A. Attending of meeting in person by account holders and / or sub-account holders and persons whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploads to CDS:

1. The Company shall obtain list of beneficial owners from the CDC as per Regulation # 12.3.5 of
the CDC Regulations.

2. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are up-loaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by showing his original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

3. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

B. Appointment of Proxies:
1. In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulation, shall submit the proxy form as per requirement notified by the Company.

2. The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

3. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

4. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney
with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.

FAUJI FOODS LIMITED
FORM OF PROXY

57th Annual General Meeting
Registered Folio No.
CDC Account No.

I/We

(Name)
of

(Address)
beinga memberof FAUJI FOODS LIMITED, hereby appoint

(Name)
of

(Address)
or failing him

(Name)
of

(Address)

(also being a member of the Company) as my/ our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/ us and on my/
our behalf, at the 57th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, March 25, 2024
at 11:00 a.m at FFL Head Office, 42 CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase-VIll, Lahore and also virtually
through video-link and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this day of 2024.

Revenue

Signature of the Shareholder/ Appointer Stamp

Witness 1 Witness 2 Rs. 50/-
Signature Signature
Name Name
Address Address
CNIC # CNIC #

NOTE: Proxies in order to be effective must reach the Company’s Registered Office not less than 48
hours before the time for holding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.
Proxies of the Members through CDC shall be accompanied with attested copies of their CNIC.

SECP’s Circular No. 1 dated 26th January, 2000 is on the reverse side of the form.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Blue Area, Islamabad January 26, 2000

Circular No. 1 of 2000

Sub: GUIDELINES FORATTENTING GENERAL MEETINGS AND APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES

The shares of a number of listed Companies are now being maintained as “Book Entry Security” on
the Central Depository System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC).
It has come to the notice of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of
relevant documents in the matter of beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC
for purposes of attending the general meetings and for verification of instruments of proxies. The
issue has been examined and pending the further instruction to be issued in this regard, the
following guideline for the convenience of the listed Companies and the beneficial owners are laid
down:

A. Attending of meeting in person by account holders and / or sub-account holders and persons whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploads to CDS:

1. The Company shall obtain list of beneficial owners from the CDC as per Regulation # 12.3.5 of
the CDC Regulations.

2. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by showing his original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC] or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

3. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

B. Appointment of Proxies:
1. In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulation, shall submit the proxy form as per requirement notified by the Company.

2. The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and
CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

3. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

4. The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

5. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney
with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.
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www.jamapunji.pk

Key features:
Gz Licensed Entities Verification

» Scam meter”

# Jamapunji games™

g Tax credit calculator®

& Company Verification

Insurance & Investment Checklist
7»? FAQs Answered

[zl Online Quizzes

. Jama Punii is an Investor
? "n Education Initiative of
1~' Securites and Excharge
";-:. w5 Commission of Pakistan
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Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapuniji.pk

4 Stock trading simulator
(based on live feed from PSX)

Knowledge center
Risk profiler*
Bl Financial calculator

@ Subscription to Alerts (event
notifications, corporate and
regulatory actions)

E Jamapunji application for
mobile device

w
Jjamapunji.pk @jamapunji_pk

"Mobile apps are also available for download for android
and ios devices



